
 

Rockaway Beach City Hall is accessible to persons with disabilities. A request for an interpreter for the hearing impaired or for other 
accommodations for persons with disabilities should be made at least 48 hours before the meeting to City Hall at 503-374-1752. 
 

City of Rockaway Beach 
Regular City Council Meeting Agenda   
 
Date:   Wednesday, July 17 2024  
Time:   6:00 P.M. 
Location:  Rockaway Beach City Hall, 276 Hwy 101 - Civic Facility  
 
Watch live stream here: corb.us/live-stream 
View meeting later here: https://janescottvideoproductions.com 
 
Join here to attend remotely:  
https://us06web.zoom.us/j/81560754814?pwd=JGOBblGyH6bDef3dLvgd2RuB1sfJv6.1 
Meeting ID: 815 6075 4814 
Passcode: 555027 
Dial by your location 
253 215 8782 US (Tacoma) 
 
How to Provide Public Comment (Citizen Input): 

• Written Comments may be submitted electronically by sending an email no later than 48 hours prior 
to the meeting to CityHall@Corb.us 

• In Person – sign-up sheet and instructions will be located on the table ouside of the meeting room. 
• Virtually on Zoom – use the “raise hand” feature when the Mayor announces it is time to do so. 

               
 

1. CALL TO ORDER – Charles McNeilly, Mayor 
 

2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 

3. ROLL CALL 
 Mayor: Charles McNeilly 
 Councilors: Penny Cheek, Mary McGinnis, Tom Martine, Kristine Hayes, Alesia Franken  
 

4. CONSENT AGENDA 
 
a. Approval of June 12, 2024 Regular Meeting Minutes 
b. Approval of June 12, 2024 Workshop Minutes 
c. Approval of June 11, 2024 Strategic Planning Retreat Minutes 
d. Review of June 2024 Check Register 
 
 

5. PRESENTATIONS, GUESTS & ANNOUNCEMENTS  
 

a. Community Grant Recipient Report – Theresa Bruneau, Meals for Seniors, Inc. 
 

b. Community Grant Recipient Report – Sandra Johnson & Robin Swain, Rockaway Beach 
Volunteers 

 

https://corb.us/live-stream
https://janescottvideoproductions.com/
https://us06web.zoom.us/j/81560754814?pwd=JGOBblGyH6bDef3dLvgd2RuB1sfJv6.1
mailto:CityHall@Corb.us


 

Rockaway Beach City Hall is accessible to persons with disabilities. A request for an interpreter for the hearing impaired or for other 
accommodations for persons with disabilities should be made at least 48 hours before the meeting to City Hall at 503-374-1752. 
 

c. Community Grant Recipient Report - Pam Hiller, Tillamook County Developmental 
Disabilities Advisory Council & David Richmond, Tillamook County Developmental 
Disabilities Program Manager 

 
 

6. STAFF REPORTS 
a. Fire Department 
b. Sheriff’s Office 
c. Public Works 
d. City Manager 

 
 

7. PUBLIC HEARING 
 

a. Public Hearing on Ordinance 2024-03 Amending the Rockaway Beach Code of 
Ordinances, Chapter 91, Section 91.01 Feeding and Keeping of Wild Animals 
This Public Hearing allows public input regarding proposed changes to the City code 
regarding wild animals. 
 
 

8. CITIZEN INPUT ON NON-AGENDA ITEMS 
 
 

9. OLD BUSINESS 
 

a. Approval of Amended May 8, 2024 Workshop Minutes 
 

 
10. NEW BUSINESS 

 
a. First & Second Reading by Title Only of Ordinance 2024-03 An Ordinance Amending 

City of Rockaway Beach Code of Ordinances Chapter 91, Section 91.01 Feeding and 
Keeping of Wild Animals 

 
b. Consideration to Adopt Ordinance 2024-03 Ordinance Amending City of Rockaway 

Beach Code of Ordinances Chapter 91, Section 91.01 Feeding and Keeping of Wild 
Animals 
 

c. Consideration to Make Appointments to the Planning Commission to Fill  
 Vacant Positions 4 & 6 

 
11. ITEMS REMOVED FROM CONSENT AGENDA 

  
12. COUNCIL CONCERNS 

 
13. MAYOR’S REPORT 

 
14. ADJOURNMENT 



 

Rockaway Beach City Council   Page 1 of 14 
Regular Session Minutes – June 12, 2024 
 

City of Rockaway Beach 
Regular City Council Meeting Minutes      
 
Date:   Wednesday, June 12, 2024 
Location:  Rockaway Beach City Hall, 276 Hwy 101 - Civic Facility  

 
 

1. CALL TO ORDER 
Mayor McNeilly called the meeting to order at 6:00 p.m. 
 

 McNeilly made a statement regarding deportment, requesting that all people respect those in 
attendance and the opinions of those with whom they may disagree prior, during and after City 
business meetings. 

 
2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

 
3. ROLL CALL 

Start time: 06:02:07 PM (00:01:43) 
 

Mayor - Charles McNeilly: Present 
Position #3 - Kristine Hayes: Present 
Position #4 - Alesia Franken: Present 
Position #1 - Mary McGinnis: Present 
Position #5 - Penelope Cheek: Present 
Position #2 - Tom Martine: Present 
 
Staff Present: Luke Shepard, City Manager; Melissa Thompson, City Recorder; Marni Johnston, 
Finance Director; Dan Emerson, Public Works Superintendent; Todd Hesse, Fire Chief; Matt Kelly, 
Undersheriff, Joshua Brown, Sheriff, and Kevin Grogan, Sheriff’s Deputy. 

 
4. CONSENT AGENDA 

Start time: 06:02:42 PM (00:02:18) 
 
a. Approval of May 8, 2024 Regular Meeting Minutes 
b. Approval of May 8, 2024 Workshop Minutes (item removed from consent agenda) 
c. Review of May 2024 Check Register 

 
Hayes removed item 4b, May 8, 2024 Workshop Minutes, from the Consent Agenda. 
 
McGinnis made a motion, seconded by Cheek, to approve the amended Consent Agenda. 
 
The motion carried by the following vote: 

  
Position #1 - Mary McGinnis: Motion 
Position #5 - Penelope Cheek: 2nd 
Position #3 - Kristine Hayes: Approve 
Position #4 - Alesia Franken: Approve 

avca:ab58336f-2afc-4c7f-b0ac-6f16b4efb8f3@00:01:43
avca:ab58336f-2afc-4c7f-b0ac-6f16b4efb8f3@00:01:55
avca:ab58336f-2afc-4c7f-b0ac-6f16b4efb8f3@00:01:55
avca:ab58336f-2afc-4c7f-b0ac-6f16b4efb8f3@00:01:55
avca:ab58336f-2afc-4c7f-b0ac-6f16b4efb8f3@00:01:55
avca:ab58336f-2afc-4c7f-b0ac-6f16b4efb8f3@00:01:55
avca:ab58336f-2afc-4c7f-b0ac-6f16b4efb8f3@00:01:55
avca:6fe87f22-e603-4617-b601-b7dbc1b86fa0@00:01:14
avca:6fe87f22-e603-4617-b601-b7dbc1b86fa0@00:01:14
avca:ab58336f-2afc-4c7f-b0ac-6f16b4efb8f3@00:02:18
avca:ab58336f-2afc-4c7f-b0ac-6f16b4efb8f3@00:04:04
avca:ab58336f-2afc-4c7f-b0ac-6f16b4efb8f3@00:04:04
avca:ab58336f-2afc-4c7f-b0ac-6f16b4efb8f3@00:04:04
avca:ab58336f-2afc-4c7f-b0ac-6f16b4efb8f3@00:04:04


 

Rockaway Beach City Council   Page 2 of 14 
Regular Session Minutes – June 12, 2024 
 

Position #1 - Mary McGinnis: Approve 
Position #5 - Penelope Cheek: Approve 
Position #2 - Tom Martine: Approve 
 

 
5. PRESENTATIONS, GUESTS & ANNOUNCEMENTS 

 
McNeilly noted an addition to the agenda and invited Bill Hassell to the podium. Hassell stated that 
Lake Lytle was a hidden treasure. He commented on the City’s recent efforts to secure grants for 

Lake Lytle improvements, noting that he had been asked to provide photos for a grant presentation. 
Hassell presented a framed photograph of Lake Lytle to City Manager Shepard, to mark the 
beginning of it becoming an incredible recreation area. Shepard commented that Hassell’s drone 

footage had helped the City acquire grant funding for the restrooms and boardwalk. 
 
a. Presentation: Granicus Short-Term Rental (STR) Software – Kyle Salonga, Granicus 

Start time: 06:06:39 PM (00:06:16) 
 

 Kyle Solonga, Granicus, gave a presentation providing an overview of their proposal for Short-
Term Rental (STR) management platform. 

 
McGinnis commented that transient lodging tax revenue would still be collected for the City by 
the state, and Granicus could provide data that would help ensure all rentals were reporting 
correct information to the Department of Revenue. McGinnis noted that one phone number would 
be available for reporting complaints, and noted benefits to owners. McNeilly commented that the 
County uses Granicus, and the recovery of lost revenue pays for the service. McNeilly expanded 
on the complaint process and data available from the platform, and benefits of outsourcing STR 
management.  

 
b. Presentation: Contract Extension for Law Enforcement in Rockaway Beach – Undersheriff 

Matt Kelly and Sheriff Joshua Brown 
Start time: 06:15:50 PM (00:15:26) 
 
Sheriff Brown thanked the Council for inviting him to speak and acknowledged the opportunity 
to have conversations and hear concerns. Brown stated he appreciated the support for law 
enforcement and relationship with Rockaway Beach. He spoke about the Sheriff’s Office staffing 

and the status of candidates to fill remaining positions. Brown expressed excitement for 
participating in upcoming 4th of July events.  
 
McGinnis explained the contract extends law enforcement services to 2028, and noted the 
Sheriff’s Office has a substation at City Hall. Brown acknowledged the benefit of having the 
substation. 
 
At the request of McNeilly, Undersheriff Kelly shared that the intent was to have additional 
Deputies on duty to enforce the fireworks ordinance on the 4th of July.  

 
 

c. Presentation: Jetty Creek Watershed Project Update - Forest Legacy & NOAA application 
efforts, Lower Watershed Letter of Intent and next steps – Daniel Wear, Sustainable Northwest 

avca:ab58336f-2afc-4c7f-b0ac-6f16b4efb8f3@00:04:04
avca:ab58336f-2afc-4c7f-b0ac-6f16b4efb8f3@00:04:04
avca:ab58336f-2afc-4c7f-b0ac-6f16b4efb8f3@00:04:04
avca:ab58336f-2afc-4c7f-b0ac-6f16b4efb8f3@00:04:04
avca:ab58336f-2afc-4c7f-b0ac-6f16b4efb8f3@00:06:16
avca:ab58336f-2afc-4c7f-b0ac-6f16b4efb8f3@00:15:26


 

Rockaway Beach City Council   Page 3 of 14 
Regular Session Minutes – June 12, 2024 
 

Start time: 06:24:06 PM (00:23:42) 
 

Daniel Wear, Sustainable Northwest, gave a presentation providing updates on the Jetty Creek 
Watershed Project. He explained differences between potential funding sources. Wear answered 
clarifying questions. He confirmed for McGinnis that just because a particular funding source 
allows for a timber harvest, it does not have to be harvested. Wear added that if the Forest Legacy 
Program is pursued and the City doesn’t want to harvest, the property could be put into the carbon 

market. Hayes inquired about amounts for grants and property costs. Wear explained that he did 
not have a firm commitment on property cost, but guessed that the $6 million NOAA limit would 
likely cover the cost. 

 
 

6. STAFF REPORTS 
 
a. Fire Department 

Start time: 06:41:31 PM (00:41:07) 
 
Hesse presented his staff report on the activities and operations of the Rockaway Beach Fire 
Rescue department for the month of May 2024. Hesse shared that candidates for the staffing grant 
would be interviewed the following week and onboarded before July 4th. Hesse shared that the 
new ladder truck downpayment was completed and the build was in progress. 
 
At the request of Martine, Hesse shared that the public should anticipate a burn ban around about 
July 15th. Hesse added that the Tillamook County Defense Board had a new website. Hesse 
confirmed for McGinnis that Captain Grace was the EMS Captain. 
 

b. Sheriff’s Office 
Start time: 06:49:36 PM (00:49:12) 
 
Deputy Kevin Grogan summarized the Sheriff’s Office report for May 2024. Grogan noted that 
cameras, such as Ring, helped Deputies investigate and solve crimes, and encouraged their use. 
He encouraged the public to report suspicious activity. 
 

c. Public Works 
Start time: 06:51:54 PM (00:51:30) 
 
Emerson presented his report on recent activities in the Public Works department. Emerson 
confirmed for Franken that the chlorine monitor issue was noticed within one day. McGinnis 
complemented Public Works for their work on the new Anchor Street playground.  
 

d. City Manager 
Start time: 06:58:11 PM (00:57:48) 
 
Shepard gave a presentation providing background information on the business items on the 
agenda, updates on other City projects and activities, and public meetings in June and July.  
 
McGinnis commented that most projects were funded by grants. 

 

avca:ab58336f-2afc-4c7f-b0ac-6f16b4efb8f3@00:23:42
avca:ab58336f-2afc-4c7f-b0ac-6f16b4efb8f3@00:41:07
avca:ab58336f-2afc-4c7f-b0ac-6f16b4efb8f3@00:49:12
avca:ab58336f-2afc-4c7f-b0ac-6f16b4efb8f3@00:51:30
avca:ab58336f-2afc-4c7f-b0ac-6f16b4efb8f3@00:57:48


 

Rockaway Beach City Council   Page 4 of 14 
Regular Session Minutes – June 12, 2024 
 

7. PUBLIC HEARING 
 
a. Public Hearing on Proposed Uses of State Revenue Sharing Funds for Fiscal Year 2024-

2025   
Start time: 07:10:11 PM (01:09:47) 

 
McNeilly stated that Public Hearing allows public input regarding the proposed uses of state 
revenue sharing funds for the Fiscal Year 2024-2025 Budget.  
 
McNeilly opened the public hearing at 7:10 p.m. 
 
No audience members wished to comment. 
 
McNeilly closed the public hearing at 7:11 p.m. 
 

b. Public Hearing on the Approved Budget for Fiscal Year 2024-2025 
Start time: 07:11:00 PM (01:10:37) 
 
McNeilly stated that the purpose of this Public Hearing is to receive public testimony on the 
budget approved by the Budget Committee. 
 
McNeilly opened the public hearing at 7:11 p.m. 
 
No audience members wished to comment. 
 
McNeilly closed the public hearing at 7:11 p.m. 

 
 

8. CITIZEN INPUT ON NON-AGENDA ITEMS 
Start time: 07:11:56 PM (01:11:32) 

 
Becci Duckworth expressed concerns regarding vehicle and pedestrian safety at the new bathrooms at 
the Wayside, and suggested installation of a protective barrier. 
 
Nancy Webster shared that there will be a North Coast Citizens for Water Protection June 22nd event 
at St. Mary’s by the Sea and invited all to attend. Webster encouraged people to get involved in 

protection of the watershed. Webster expressed concerns regarding septic tanks.  
 
Kristin Koptiuch advocated for the annexation of Nedonna Beach in exchange for installation of 
sewer lines. She expressed concerns regarding sea level rise and drinking water contamination due to 
deteriorating septic systems.  
 
Goldea See expressed concerns about traffic and noise at the Anchor Street Park. See suggested 
installation of sound barriers and establishing hours.  
 
Kathleen L’Engle shared concerns about feeding of deer, referencing Code Chapter 91.01, Wild 
Animals, and advocated that the Council approve proposed Ordinance 2024-03. 
 

avca:ab58336f-2afc-4c7f-b0ac-6f16b4efb8f3@01:09:47
avca:ab58336f-2afc-4c7f-b0ac-6f16b4efb8f3@01:10:37
avca:ab58336f-2afc-4c7f-b0ac-6f16b4efb8f3@01:11:32


 

Rockaway Beach City Council   Page 5 of 14 
Regular Session Minutes – June 12, 2024 
 

Justin McMahan expressed concerns regarding the election process and advocated for removing 
position numbers from Council positions. McMahan referenced his submitted written testimony. 
 
 

9. OLD BUSINESS – None Scheduled 
 
 

10. NEW BUSINESS 
 

a. Proclamation - June 2024 as High School Senior Recognition Month  
Start time: 07:34:39 PM (01:34:15) 
 
McNeilly read aloud the proclamation to declare June as High School Senior Recognition 
Month. 
 
Martine made a motion, seconded by Cheek, to approve the proclamation declaring June as 
High School Senior Recognition Month. 
 
Martine commented that it was nice to acknowledge graduates.  
 
The motion carried by the following vote: 
  
Position #2 - Tom Martine: Motion 
Position #5 - Penelope Cheek: 2nd 
Position #3 - Kristine Hayes: Approve 
Position #4 - Alesia Franken: Approve 
Position #1 - Mary McGinnis: Approve 
Position #5 - Penelope Cheek: Approve 
Position #2 - Tom Martine: Approve 
 
 

b. Consideration of Resolution 2024-30 Amending the Intergovernmental Agreement 
Between the City of Rockaway Beach and the Tillamook County Sheriff’s Office for 
Law Enforcement Services 
Start time: 07:36:41 PM (01:36:17) 
 
McNeilly explained that this resolution acts to extend the existing law enforcement IGA 
between the City of Rockaway Beach and the Tillamook County Sherriff’s Office through 
June 2028 and adjust charges for services rendered. 
 
McNeilly invited public comment. No audience members wished to comment. 
 
McGinnis made a motion, seconded by Franken, to approve Resolution 2024-30 Amending 
the Intergovernmental Agreement Between the City of Rockaway Beach and the Tillamook 
County Sheriff’s Office for Law Enforcement Services. 
 
McGinnis commented that the City was well-served by the Sheriff’s office.  
 

avca:ab58336f-2afc-4c7f-b0ac-6f16b4efb8f3@01:34:15
avca:ab58336f-2afc-4c7f-b0ac-6f16b4efb8f3@01:36:14
avca:ab58336f-2afc-4c7f-b0ac-6f16b4efb8f3@01:36:14
avca:ab58336f-2afc-4c7f-b0ac-6f16b4efb8f3@01:36:14
avca:ab58336f-2afc-4c7f-b0ac-6f16b4efb8f3@01:36:14
avca:ab58336f-2afc-4c7f-b0ac-6f16b4efb8f3@01:36:14
avca:ab58336f-2afc-4c7f-b0ac-6f16b4efb8f3@01:36:14
avca:ab58336f-2afc-4c7f-b0ac-6f16b4efb8f3@01:36:14
avca:ab58336f-2afc-4c7f-b0ac-6f16b4efb8f3@01:36:14
avca:ab58336f-2afc-4c7f-b0ac-6f16b4efb8f3@01:36:17


 

Rockaway Beach City Council   Page 6 of 14 
Regular Session Minutes – June 12, 2024 
 

The motion carried by the following vote: 
 
Position #1 - Mary McGinnis: Motion 
Position #4 - Alesia Franken: 2nd 
Position #3 - Kristine Hayes: Approve 
Position #4 - Alesia Franken: Approve 
Position #1 - Mary McGinnis: Approve 
Position #5 - Penelope Cheek: Approve 
Position #2 - Tom Martine: Approve 
 
 

c. Consideration of Resolution 2024-33 Approving a Proposal from Granicus for Short-
Term Host Compliance Software & Authorizing the City Manager to Execute an 
Agreement 
Start time: 07:38:59 PM (01:38:35) 
 
McNeilly explained this resolution approves the proposal for STR software and authorizes the 
City Manager to sign an agreement. 
 
McNeilly invited public comment.  
 
Hayes recused herself from the meeting. 
 
Nancy Lanyon commented that the baseline of addresses had anomalies based on the 2022 
census and expressed concerns about using that data for street names. Lanyon encouraged 
consideration of the base date for evaluating data in relation to the fiscal year, and ensure 
responsibility for receiving complaints via email. 
 
Franken made a motion, seconded by McGinnis, to approve Resolution 2024-33 Approving a 
Proposal from Granicus for Short-Term Host Compliance Software & Authorizing the City 
Manager to Execute an Agreement. 
 
Franken commented that it was a big help to city staff and will help the Council make more 
informed decisions.  McGinnis commented that the County uses Granicus. 
 
The motion carried by the following vote: 
 
Position #4 - Alesia Franken: Motion 
Position #1 - Mary McGinnis: 2nd 
Position #3 - Kristine Hayes: Abstain 
Position #4 - Alesia Franken: Approve 
Position #1 - Mary McGinnis: Approve 
Position #5 - Penelope Cheek: Approve 
Position #2 - Tom Martine: Approve 
 
Hayes rejoined the meeting. 
 
 

avca:ab58336f-2afc-4c7f-b0ac-6f16b4efb8f3@01:38:32
avca:ab58336f-2afc-4c7f-b0ac-6f16b4efb8f3@01:38:32
avca:ab58336f-2afc-4c7f-b0ac-6f16b4efb8f3@01:38:32
avca:ab58336f-2afc-4c7f-b0ac-6f16b4efb8f3@01:38:32
avca:ab58336f-2afc-4c7f-b0ac-6f16b4efb8f3@01:38:32
avca:ab58336f-2afc-4c7f-b0ac-6f16b4efb8f3@01:38:32
avca:ab58336f-2afc-4c7f-b0ac-6f16b4efb8f3@01:38:32
avca:ab58336f-2afc-4c7f-b0ac-6f16b4efb8f3@01:38:32
avca:ab58336f-2afc-4c7f-b0ac-6f16b4efb8f3@01:38:35
avca:ab58336f-2afc-4c7f-b0ac-6f16b4efb8f3@01:43:25
avca:ab58336f-2afc-4c7f-b0ac-6f16b4efb8f3@01:43:25
avca:ab58336f-2afc-4c7f-b0ac-6f16b4efb8f3@01:43:25
avca:ab58336f-2afc-4c7f-b0ac-6f16b4efb8f3@01:43:25
avca:ab58336f-2afc-4c7f-b0ac-6f16b4efb8f3@01:43:25
avca:ab58336f-2afc-4c7f-b0ac-6f16b4efb8f3@01:43:25
avca:ab58336f-2afc-4c7f-b0ac-6f16b4efb8f3@01:43:25
avca:ab58336f-2afc-4c7f-b0ac-6f16b4efb8f3@01:43:25


 

Rockaway Beach City Council   Page 7 of 14 
Regular Session Minutes – June 12, 2024 
 

d. Consideration of Resolution 2024-22 Adopting an Updated Employee Handbook 
Start time: 07:43:53 PM (01:43:29) 
 
McNeilly explained that this resolution adopts updated personnel policies and procedures that 
govern the employment relationship between the City and its employees, and rescinds the 
previous edition. 
 
McNeilly invited public comment. No audience members wished to comment. 
 
Cheek made a motion, seconded by Martine, to approve Resolution 2024-22 Adopting an 
Updated Employee Handbook. 
 
Cheek commented that it was a necessary tool that Council and staff could agree on. 
 
The motion carried by the following vote: 
 
Position #5 - Penelope Cheek: Motion 
Position #2 - Tom Martine: 2nd 
Position #3 - Kristine Hayes: Approve 
Position #4 - Alesia Franken: Approve 
Position #1 - Mary McGinnis: Approve 
Position #5 - Penelope Cheek: Approve 
Position #2 - Tom Martine: Approve 
 
 

e. Consideration to Select a Grand Marshal for the 2024 July Fourth Parade  
Start time: 07:46:11 PM (01:45:47) 

 
McNeilly explained that consideration for selecting the Grand Marshal included community 
service, personal accomplishment or awards, length of time living in the community, personal 
deeds, and dedication to the community over their lifetime. McNeilly noted that the Council 
discussed nominees at the Workshop and formed a consensus around Bill Hassell. 
 
McNeilly invited public comment. No audience members wished to comment 
 
McGinnis made a motion, seconded by Cheek, to select Bill Hassell as the Grand Marshal. 

   
McGinnis commented that Hassell had a lot of support. 

 
  The motion carried by the following vote: 

 
Position #1 - Mary McGinnis: Motion 
Position #5 - Penelope Cheek: 2nd 
Position #3 - Kristine Hayes: Approve 
Position #4 - Alesia Franken: Approve 
Position #1 - Mary McGinnis: Approve 
Position #5 - Penelope Cheek: Approve 

avca:ab58336f-2afc-4c7f-b0ac-6f16b4efb8f3@01:43:29
avca:ab58336f-2afc-4c7f-b0ac-6f16b4efb8f3@01:45:43
avca:ab58336f-2afc-4c7f-b0ac-6f16b4efb8f3@01:45:43
avca:ab58336f-2afc-4c7f-b0ac-6f16b4efb8f3@01:45:43
avca:ab58336f-2afc-4c7f-b0ac-6f16b4efb8f3@01:45:43
avca:ab58336f-2afc-4c7f-b0ac-6f16b4efb8f3@01:45:43
avca:ab58336f-2afc-4c7f-b0ac-6f16b4efb8f3@01:45:43
avca:ab58336f-2afc-4c7f-b0ac-6f16b4efb8f3@01:45:43
avca:ab58336f-2afc-4c7f-b0ac-6f16b4efb8f3@01:45:43
avca:ab58336f-2afc-4c7f-b0ac-6f16b4efb8f3@01:45:47
avca:ab58336f-2afc-4c7f-b0ac-6f16b4efb8f3@01:47:45
avca:ab58336f-2afc-4c7f-b0ac-6f16b4efb8f3@01:47:45
avca:ab58336f-2afc-4c7f-b0ac-6f16b4efb8f3@01:47:45
avca:ab58336f-2afc-4c7f-b0ac-6f16b4efb8f3@01:47:45
avca:ab58336f-2afc-4c7f-b0ac-6f16b4efb8f3@01:47:45
avca:ab58336f-2afc-4c7f-b0ac-6f16b4efb8f3@01:47:45


 

Rockaway Beach City Council   Page 8 of 14 
Regular Session Minutes – June 12, 2024 
 

Position #2 - Tom Martine: Approve 
 
McNeilly offered congratulations and said it was well-deserved. 
 
 

f. Consideration to Select the 2024 Volunteer of the Year 
Start time: 07:48:57 PM (01:48:34) 
 
McNeilly explained areas of consideration included community service, personal 
accomplishment or awards, length of time living in the community, personal deeds, and 
dedication to the community over their lifetime. McNeilly said that the Council discussed 
nominees at the Workshop and formed a consensus around Ronnie Duckworth. 
 
McNeilly invited public comment. No audience members wished to comment. 
 
Franken made a motion, seconded by Martine, to select Ronnie Duckworth as 2024 Volunteer 
of the Year. 
 
Franken commented that those who nominated him provided many touching comments, and it 
was clear that he was an important part of the community. McGinnis commented on the large 
number of nominations received for Duckworth. 
 
The motion carried by the following vote: 
 
Position #4 - Alesia Franken: Motion 
Position #2 - Tom Martine: 2nd 
Position #3 - Kristine Hayes: Approve 
Position #4 - Alesia Franken: Approve 
Position #1 - Mary McGinnis: Approve 
Position #5 - Penelope Cheek: Approve 
Position #2 - Tom Martine: Approve 
 
 

g. Consideration of Resolution 2024-31 Approving Wayside Application for Rockaway 
Beach Music Festival 
Start time: 07:50:18 PM (01:49:54) 

 
McNeilly explained that this resolution approves a Wayside use application from the Neah-
Kah-Nie Coast Arts, Music & Cultural Foundation for the Rockaway Beach Music Festival. 

 
McNeilly invited public comment. No audience members wished to comment. 
 
McGinnis declared that she did not have a conflict of interest because there was no money 
involved, but she was on the planning committee for the festival. 
 
Martine made a motion, seconded by Franken, to approve Resolution 2024-31 Approving 
Wayside Application for Rockaway Beach Music Festival. 

 

avca:ab58336f-2afc-4c7f-b0ac-6f16b4efb8f3@01:47:45
avca:ab58336f-2afc-4c7f-b0ac-6f16b4efb8f3@01:47:45
avca:ab58336f-2afc-4c7f-b0ac-6f16b4efb8f3@01:48:34
avca:ab58336f-2afc-4c7f-b0ac-6f16b4efb8f3@01:49:51
avca:ab58336f-2afc-4c7f-b0ac-6f16b4efb8f3@01:49:51
avca:ab58336f-2afc-4c7f-b0ac-6f16b4efb8f3@01:49:51
avca:ab58336f-2afc-4c7f-b0ac-6f16b4efb8f3@01:49:51
avca:ab58336f-2afc-4c7f-b0ac-6f16b4efb8f3@01:49:51
avca:ab58336f-2afc-4c7f-b0ac-6f16b4efb8f3@01:49:51
avca:ab58336f-2afc-4c7f-b0ac-6f16b4efb8f3@01:49:51
avca:ab58336f-2afc-4c7f-b0ac-6f16b4efb8f3@01:49:51
avca:ab58336f-2afc-4c7f-b0ac-6f16b4efb8f3@01:49:54


 

Rockaway Beach City Council   Page 9 of 14 
Regular Session Minutes – June 12, 2024 
 

The motion carried by the following vote: 
 
Position #2 - Tom Martine: Motion 
Position #4 - Alesia Franken: 2nd 
Position #3 - Kristine Hayes: Approve 
Position #4 - Alesia Franken: Approve 
Position #1 - Mary McGinnis: Approve 
Position #5 - Penelope Cheek: Approve 
Position #2 - Tom Martine: Approve 
 
 

h. Consideration of Resolution 2024-32 Approving a Letter of Intent and Non-Disclosure 
Agreement with Nuveen Natural Capital, LLC., to Facilitate Funding Opportunities and 
Related Due Diligence on the Timberlands Comprising the Lower Watershed of Jetty 
Creek 
Start time: 07:52:14 PM (01:51:50) 

 
McNeilly stated that this resolution approves actions related to pursuing the City’s interest in 

acquiring the Lower Watershed of Jetty Creek. 
 

McNeilly invited public comment.  
 
Nancy Lanyon shared that she was happy to see the City pursuing this in a responsible way 
and was glad there was time for community interaction. Lanyon appreciated mineral and 
agricultural references in the proposal, as well as carbon tax credits. Lanyon commented on 
pesticides and spraying, and their effect on beehives.  
 
Franken made a motion, seconded by Hayes, to approve Resolution 2024-32. 
 
Franken commented that it was a great step forward in the community toward protecting the 
quality and quantity of our drinking water. McGinnis thanked Sandy Johnson and City 
Manager Shepard for participating on the negotiating team. McGinnis thanked Nuveen 
Natural Capital and their regional manager Kevin Brown for their participation. Hayes 
thanked Nancy Webster and said that she didn’t think any of this would be happening without 

her. McGinnis added her thanks to Webster. 
 
The motion carried by the following vote: 

 
Position #4 - Alesia Franken: Motion 
Position #3 - Kristine Hayes: 2nd 
Position #3 - Kristine Hayes: Approve 
Position #4 - Alesia Franken: Approve 
Position #1 - Mary McGinnis: Approve 
Position #5 - Penelope Cheek: Approve 
Position #2 - Tom Martine: Approve 
 

 McNeilly acknowledged that it was a monumental step for the City and expressed his thanks 
to Webster and her organization. 

avca:ab58336f-2afc-4c7f-b0ac-6f16b4efb8f3@01:51:46
avca:ab58336f-2afc-4c7f-b0ac-6f16b4efb8f3@01:51:46
avca:ab58336f-2afc-4c7f-b0ac-6f16b4efb8f3@01:51:46
avca:ab58336f-2afc-4c7f-b0ac-6f16b4efb8f3@01:51:46
avca:ab58336f-2afc-4c7f-b0ac-6f16b4efb8f3@01:51:46
avca:ab58336f-2afc-4c7f-b0ac-6f16b4efb8f3@01:51:46
avca:ab58336f-2afc-4c7f-b0ac-6f16b4efb8f3@01:51:46
avca:ab58336f-2afc-4c7f-b0ac-6f16b4efb8f3@01:51:46
avca:ab58336f-2afc-4c7f-b0ac-6f16b4efb8f3@01:51:50
avca:ab58336f-2afc-4c7f-b0ac-6f16b4efb8f3@01:57:06
avca:ab58336f-2afc-4c7f-b0ac-6f16b4efb8f3@01:57:06
avca:ab58336f-2afc-4c7f-b0ac-6f16b4efb8f3@01:57:06
avca:ab58336f-2afc-4c7f-b0ac-6f16b4efb8f3@01:57:06
avca:ab58336f-2afc-4c7f-b0ac-6f16b4efb8f3@01:57:06
avca:ab58336f-2afc-4c7f-b0ac-6f16b4efb8f3@01:57:06
avca:ab58336f-2afc-4c7f-b0ac-6f16b4efb8f3@01:57:06
avca:ab58336f-2afc-4c7f-b0ac-6f16b4efb8f3@01:57:06


 

Rockaway Beach City Council   Page 10 of 14 
Regular Session Minutes – June 12, 2024 
 

  
i. Consideration of Resolution 2024-34 A Resolution Reviewing and Continuing Reserve 

Funds 
Start time: 07:57:48 PM (01:57:24) 
 
McNeilly explained that this resolution meets the State law requirement that the City review 
and reaffirm its reserve funds at least every 10 years, and shared the funds to be considered. 
 
McNeilly invited public comment.  No audience members wished to comment. 
 
McGinnis made a motion, seconded by Martine, to approve Resolution 2024-34 A Resolution 
Reviewing and Continuing Reserve Funds. 
 
McGinnis commented that the action was routine. 
 
The motion carried by the following vote: 
 
Position #1 - Mary McGinnis: Motion 
Position #2 - Tom Martine: 2nd 
Position #3 - Kristine Hayes: Approve 
Position #4 - Alesia Franken: Approve 
Position #1 - Mary McGinnis: Approve 
Position #5 - Penelope Cheek: Approve 
Position #2 - Tom Martine: Approve 
 
 

j. Consideration of Resolution 2024-35 A Resolution Establishing the Economic Stability 
Reserve Fund #170 
Start time: 07:59:44 PM (01:59:20) 
 
McNeilly explained that this resolution creates a “rainy day” fund, as submitted in the 

approved budget. He noted that the fund shall not be used to supplement water or sewer 
operating funds. 
 
McNeilly invited public comment. No audience members wished to comment. 
 
Franken made a motion, seconded by Martine, to approve Resolution 2024-35 A Resolution 
Establishing the Economic Stability Reserve Fund #170. 
 
Franken commented that it was a testament to how well the city was doing financially and 
thanked Shepard. McNeilly commented that fund would help with the inevitable ups and 
downs of tourism and the transient lodging tax. 
 
The motion carried by the following vote: 

 
Position #4 - Alesia Franken: Motion 
Position #2 - Tom Martine: 2nd 
Position #3 - Kristine Hayes: Approve 

avca:ab58336f-2afc-4c7f-b0ac-6f16b4efb8f3@01:57:24
avca:ab58336f-2afc-4c7f-b0ac-6f16b4efb8f3@01:59:17
avca:ab58336f-2afc-4c7f-b0ac-6f16b4efb8f3@01:59:17
avca:ab58336f-2afc-4c7f-b0ac-6f16b4efb8f3@01:59:17
avca:ab58336f-2afc-4c7f-b0ac-6f16b4efb8f3@01:59:17
avca:ab58336f-2afc-4c7f-b0ac-6f16b4efb8f3@01:59:17
avca:ab58336f-2afc-4c7f-b0ac-6f16b4efb8f3@01:59:17
avca:ab58336f-2afc-4c7f-b0ac-6f16b4efb8f3@01:59:17
avca:ab58336f-2afc-4c7f-b0ac-6f16b4efb8f3@01:59:17
avca:ab58336f-2afc-4c7f-b0ac-6f16b4efb8f3@01:59:20
avca:ab58336f-2afc-4c7f-b0ac-6f16b4efb8f3@02:01:46
avca:ab58336f-2afc-4c7f-b0ac-6f16b4efb8f3@02:01:46
avca:ab58336f-2afc-4c7f-b0ac-6f16b4efb8f3@02:01:46


 

Rockaway Beach City Council   Page 11 of 14 
Regular Session Minutes – June 12, 2024 
 

Position #4 - Alesia Franken: Approve 
Position #1 - Mary McGinnis: Approve 
Position #5 - Penelope Cheek: Approve 
Position #2 - Tom Martine: Approve 
 
 

k. Consideration of Resolution 2024-36 Declaring the City’s Election to Receive State 
Revenues 
Start time: 08:02:12 PM (02:01:48) 
 
McNeilly explained that this resolution meets the state requirement that the city declare its 
intent to receive its share of state revenues for fiscal year 2024-2025. 

 
Martine made a motion, seconded by Franken, to approve Resolution 2024-36.  
 
McGinnis commented that the action was routine. 
 
The motion carried by the following vote: 
 
Position #2 - Tom Martine: Motion 
Position #4 - Alesia Franken: 2nd 
Position #3 - Kristine Hayes: Approve 
Position #4 - Alesia Franken: Approve 
Position #1 - Mary McGinnis: Approve 
Position #5 - Penelope Cheek: Approve 
Position #2 - Tom Martine: Approve 
 
 

l. Consideration of Resolution 2024-37 Adopting the Budget; Making Appropriations; and 
Imposing and Categorizing Taxes for Fiscal Year 2024-2025 
Start time: 08:03:19 PM (02:02:55) 
 
McNeilly stated that the Budget Committee approved the 2024-2025 budget, and it is now 
before the Council for adoption. This one resolution contains all four actions required: it 
adopts the budget, appropriates funds, and imposes and categorizes taxes for fiscal year 2024-
2025.  
 
McGinnis made a motion, seconded by Cheek, to approve Resolution 2024-37 Adopting the 
Budget; Making Appropriations; and Imposing and Categorizing Taxes for Fiscal Year 2024-
2025. 
 
McGinnis thanked the Budget Committee members, noting that some were present. Franken 
thanked Finance Director Marni Johnston. 
 
The motion carried by the following vote: 
 
 

avca:ab58336f-2afc-4c7f-b0ac-6f16b4efb8f3@02:01:46
avca:ab58336f-2afc-4c7f-b0ac-6f16b4efb8f3@02:01:46
avca:ab58336f-2afc-4c7f-b0ac-6f16b4efb8f3@02:01:46
avca:ab58336f-2afc-4c7f-b0ac-6f16b4efb8f3@02:01:46
avca:ab58336f-2afc-4c7f-b0ac-6f16b4efb8f3@02:01:48
avca:ab58336f-2afc-4c7f-b0ac-6f16b4efb8f3@02:02:52
avca:ab58336f-2afc-4c7f-b0ac-6f16b4efb8f3@02:02:52
avca:ab58336f-2afc-4c7f-b0ac-6f16b4efb8f3@02:02:52
avca:ab58336f-2afc-4c7f-b0ac-6f16b4efb8f3@02:02:52
avca:ab58336f-2afc-4c7f-b0ac-6f16b4efb8f3@02:02:52
avca:ab58336f-2afc-4c7f-b0ac-6f16b4efb8f3@02:02:52
avca:ab58336f-2afc-4c7f-b0ac-6f16b4efb8f3@02:02:52
avca:ab58336f-2afc-4c7f-b0ac-6f16b4efb8f3@02:02:52
avca:ab58336f-2afc-4c7f-b0ac-6f16b4efb8f3@02:02:55


 

Rockaway Beach City Council   Page 12 of 14 
Regular Session Minutes – June 12, 2024 
 

Position #1 - Mary McGinnis: Motion 
Position #5 - Penelope Cheek: 2nd 
Position #3 - Kristine Hayes: Approve 
Position #4 - Alesia Franken: Approve 
Position #1 - Mary McGinnis: Approve 
Position #5 - Penelope Cheek: Approve 
Position #2 - Tom Martine: Approve 
 
 

 
11. ITEMS REMOVED FROM CONSENT AGENDA 

Start time: 08:05:25 PM (02:05:01) 
 

a. Approval of May 8, 2024 Workshop Minutes 
 
Hayes requested amendments clarifying her comments on page 2 regarding the Façade Grant.  
 
McNeilly suggested that the item be tabled, and that City Recorder Thompson be asked to 
review the recording and report back. McGinnis noted that the minutes are not verbatim, they 
are a summary. 
 
Hayes made a motion, seconded by McGinnis, to table approval of minutes to the next 
meeting. 
 
The motion carried by the following vote: 
 
Position #3 - Kristine Hayes: Motion 
Position #1 - Mary McGinnis: 2nd 
Position #3 - Kristine Hayes: Approve 
Position #4 - Alesia Franken: Approve 
Position #1 - Mary McGinnis: Approve 
Position #5 - Penelope Cheek: Approve 
Position #2 - Tom Martine: Approve 
 
 
 

12. COUNCIL CONCERNS 
Start time: 08:07:43 PM (02:07:19) 
 
Cheek commented on Strategic Planning Retreat and expressed appreciation to Shepard. 
 
Franken appreciated that staff was included in the Strategic Planning process, noting it was a helpful 
and productive experience. Franken shared that she was proud to live in a place where people were so 
kind and supportive of their fellow citizens in their nominations for Grand Marshal and Volunteer of 
theYear. 
 
Hayes commented that she enjoyed the Strategic Planning process and looked forward to the public 
engagement process. She commented that she thought the process felt backwards with the Council 

avca:ab58336f-2afc-4c7f-b0ac-6f16b4efb8f3@02:04:55
avca:ab58336f-2afc-4c7f-b0ac-6f16b4efb8f3@02:04:55
avca:ab58336f-2afc-4c7f-b0ac-6f16b4efb8f3@02:04:55
avca:ab58336f-2afc-4c7f-b0ac-6f16b4efb8f3@02:04:55
avca:ab58336f-2afc-4c7f-b0ac-6f16b4efb8f3@02:04:55
avca:ab58336f-2afc-4c7f-b0ac-6f16b4efb8f3@02:04:55
avca:ab58336f-2afc-4c7f-b0ac-6f16b4efb8f3@02:04:55
avca:ab58336f-2afc-4c7f-b0ac-6f16b4efb8f3@02:04:55
avca:ab58336f-2afc-4c7f-b0ac-6f16b4efb8f3@02:05:01
avca:ab58336f-2afc-4c7f-b0ac-6f16b4efb8f3@02:07:14
avca:ab58336f-2afc-4c7f-b0ac-6f16b4efb8f3@02:07:14
avca:ab58336f-2afc-4c7f-b0ac-6f16b4efb8f3@02:07:14
avca:ab58336f-2afc-4c7f-b0ac-6f16b4efb8f3@02:07:14
avca:ab58336f-2afc-4c7f-b0ac-6f16b4efb8f3@02:07:14
avca:ab58336f-2afc-4c7f-b0ac-6f16b4efb8f3@02:07:14
avca:ab58336f-2afc-4c7f-b0ac-6f16b4efb8f3@02:07:14
avca:ab58336f-2afc-4c7f-b0ac-6f16b4efb8f3@02:07:14
avca:ab58336f-2afc-4c7f-b0ac-6f16b4efb8f3@02:07:19


 

Rockaway Beach City Council   Page 13 of 14 
Regular Session Minutes – June 12, 2024 
 

and staff meeting prior to public engagement, but it sounded like they would do a great job of 
including all voices. Hayes commented that she wanted to restore the Charter, saw no reason to have 
Council position numbers, and that it didn’t feel democratic or fair. Hayes stated that if position 

numbers are used, they should represent districts, and the districts must be voted on by ordinance. 
 
Martine commented that election time was coming up and he would like to see people that are 
qualified run for Council, and he wanted it to be done fairly. He commented on a “Team Rockaway” 

group that campaigned in the election 12 years ago, noting those who were elected harassed the City 
Manager, and were ultimately recalled. Martine stated that we don’t need gang voting. He 
encouraged prospective candidates to promote themselves and refrain from badmouthing other 
people.  
 
McGinnis thanked City staff for participation in the Strategic Planning Retreat. McGinnis encouraged 
the public to review the Strategic Planning charts posted in the Council room, and to participate in the 
process.  McGinnis shared information about walks to be held by the Salmonberry Trail Foundation, 
a July 4th bicycle brigade, and convention sites available in Rockaway Beach. McGinnis commented 
on the quality-of-life surrounding Anchor Street Park, and suggested that the City look into 
addressing concerns about noise. McGinnis addressed Facebook comments suggesting that the 
Coffee with Mayor and Manager was a public meeting, explaining that by state law definition, it was 
not. McGinnis commented on voting, stating that the election process was not illegal. She explained 
that the City Charter was devoid on the matter. McGinnis advocated for following the model that the 
City of Bend used to amend their Charter election provisions, and for next election cycle, the City 
should establish a citizen’s committee to review the Charter and make recommendations. McGinnis 
proposed that residents should determine how they vote and how much the City Council gets paid.  
 
 
 

13. MAYOR’S REPORT 
Start time: 08:19:34 PM (02:19:11) 
 
McNeilly shared that the monthly Coffee with Manager and Mayor was held on May 30th and a 
summary of comments was included in the agenda packet. McNeilly explained he had established the 
monthly Coffee with Manager and Mayor to provide opportunity for increasing community 
member’s connection and communication with city leadership. He noted that Coffee with Manager 
and Mayor are not subject to public meetings law. He explained that the Coffee was intended for the 
community members and had requested the Council members not attend. McNeilly expressed 
concerns that the Coffee with Manager and Mayor would become politicized and announced that the 
Coffee meetings would be suspended until after General Election. The next Coffee with Manager and 
Mayor will be November 21, 2024.  

 
McNeilly commented that how Councilors are elected had become a topic of discussion. He shared a 
slide explaining the three ways cities in Oregon elect Councilors, including position numbers with 
wards (geographical representation), position numbers with no wards (at large representation), and 
Block Voting (vote for your favorite candidates up to the number of open Council seats. McNeilly 
noted that the election process currently in place had been that way for 10 years. He stated that 
consideration to change the process was a challenge since the City Charter was silent on the issue. 
McNeilly explained that the City Elections Official will follow recommendations of the City 
Attorney and will not seek modifications to the City elections through the certification of the 2024 

avca:ab58336f-2afc-4c7f-b0ac-6f16b4efb8f3@02:19:11


 

Rockaway Beach City Council   Page 14 of 14 
Regular Session Minutes – June 12, 2024 
 

ballot. McNeilly advocated for a holistic review and update of the City Charter that would then go to 
voters for approval. He encouraged the public to make their desires for a Charter update known 
during the strategic plan process.   
 
McNeilly encouraged the public not to rely on social media. He explained that he follows the League 
of Oregon Cities (LOC) guidance discouraging discussion of City business on social media, and 
invited the public to email to him their questions and concerns. 
 
 

14. ADJOURNMENT 
Start time: 08:25:28 PM (02:25:05) 
 
McGinnis commented that the Grand Marshal sets the pace for the July 4th parade, and encouraged 
Hassell to go slow. 
 
Hayes moved, seconded by Martine, to adjourn the meeting at 8:25 p.m. 
 
The motion carried by the following vote: 

 
Position #3 - Kristine Hayes: Motion 
Position #2 - Tom Martine: 2nd 
Position #3 - Kristine Hayes: Approve 
Position #4 - Alesia Franken: Approve 
Position #1 - Mary McGinnis: Approve 
Position #5 - Penelope Cheek: Approve 
Position #2 - Tom Martine: Approve 
 

 
MINUTES APPROVED THE 
17TH DAY OF JULY 2024 

 
         
                 ______________________________ 
         Charles McNeilly, Mayor  
 
 ATTEST  
 
 
      
Melissa Thompson, City Recorder  

avca:ab58336f-2afc-4c7f-b0ac-6f16b4efb8f3@02:25:05
avca:ab58336f-2afc-4c7f-b0ac-6f16b4efb8f3@02:25:57
avca:ab58336f-2afc-4c7f-b0ac-6f16b4efb8f3@02:25:57
avca:ab58336f-2afc-4c7f-b0ac-6f16b4efb8f3@02:25:57
avca:ab58336f-2afc-4c7f-b0ac-6f16b4efb8f3@02:25:57
avca:ab58336f-2afc-4c7f-b0ac-6f16b4efb8f3@02:25:57
avca:ab58336f-2afc-4c7f-b0ac-6f16b4efb8f3@02:25:57
avca:ab58336f-2afc-4c7f-b0ac-6f16b4efb8f3@02:25:57
avca:ab58336f-2afc-4c7f-b0ac-6f16b4efb8f3@02:25:57


 

Rockaway Beach City Council   Page 1 of 3 
Workshop Minutes – June 12, 2024 

City of Rockaway Beach 
City Council Workshop Minutes      
 
Date:   Wednesday, June 12, 2024  
Location:  Rockaway Beach City Hall, 276 HWY 101 – 2nd Floor Conference Room 

 
 

1. CALL TO ORDER 
Mayor McNeilly called the meeting to order at 4:30 p.m. 
 

2. ROLL CALL   
Start time: 04:30:58 PM (00:00:48) 
 
Mayor - Charles McNeilly: Present 
Position #3 - Kristine Hayes: Present (arrived at 4:36 p.m.) 
Position #4 - Alesia Franken: Present 
Position #1 - Mary McGinnis: Present 
Position #5 - Penelope Cheek: Present 
Position #2 - Tom Martine: Present 
 
Staff Present: Luke Shepard, City Manager; Melissa Thompson, City Recorder; and Mary Johnson, 
City Planner 
 
 

3. COUNCIL BRIEFING/DISCUSSION 
 

a. Presentation - Granicus Short-Term Rental Software – Kyle Salonga 
Start time: 04:31:49 PM (00:01:39) 
 
City Planner Johnson introduced Kyle Salonga from Granicus. Salonga introduced Granicus 
consultant Jeffrey Goodman. Salonga gave a presentation providing an overview of 
Granicus’s Short-Term Rental (STR) management platform. Salonga and Goodman answered 
clarifying questions for the Council. Salonga and Johnson explained how the platform would 
be implemented within the first year, beginning with renewals in July, as well as benefits for 
STR owners and management companies. Councilors acknowledged Johnson for her work. 
There was brief discussion regarding costs.  

 
b. Review of Nominations for Grand Marshal and Volunteer of the Year (5:10 p.m.) 

Start time: 05:03:08 PM (00:32:58) 
 
Shepard provided the Council with paper ballots for nominations for Grand Marshal and 
Volunteer of the Year. McNeilly explained that Caroline Walters, Michael Weisenfluh, City 
Manager Shepard and himself all expressed they were honored to be nominated, but withdrew 
themselves from consideration. Cheek and Hayes withdrew themselves from consideration. 
McNeilly explained the voting process. The Council completed ballots and results were 
tallied. McNeilly announced Bill Hassell as the top vote for Grand Marshal, and Ronnie 
Duckworth as the top vote for Volunteer of the Year.  

avca:d05ec138-c8d7-4549-b989-b42065f26387@00:00:48
avca:d05ec138-c8d7-4549-b989-b42065f26387@00:06:21
avca:d05ec138-c8d7-4549-b989-b42065f26387@00:06:21
avca:d05ec138-c8d7-4549-b989-b42065f26387@00:06:21
avca:d05ec138-c8d7-4549-b989-b42065f26387@00:06:21
avca:d05ec138-c8d7-4549-b989-b42065f26387@00:06:21
avca:d05ec138-c8d7-4549-b989-b42065f26387@00:06:21
avca:d05ec138-c8d7-4549-b989-b42065f26387@00:01:39
avca:d05ec138-c8d7-4549-b989-b42065f26387@00:32:58


 

Rockaway Beach City Council   Page 2 of 3 
Workshop Minutes – June 12, 2024 

 
 

c. Review of Draft Ordinance Amending Code Chapter 91, Section 91.01 – Wild Animals  
Start time: 05:13:05 PM (00:42:56) 
 
Shepard explained it was the second time the Council would review the draft ordinance. He 
noted that a subsection was added to address penalties. Shepard answered clarifying 
questions. There were comments that the ordinance addressed safety concerns. It was noted 
that the intent was not to target feeding of squirrels at the Wayside. Hayes suggested adding 
language regarding bulk feeding. There was consensus to bring the proposed ordinance to the 
next Council meeting with two readings in one meeting.  
 
 

There was brief discussion regarding items in the regular meeting agenda packet related to watershed 
acquisition. Shepard answered clarifying questions for the Council related to Resolution 2024-32 
Approving a Letter of Intent and Non-Disclosure Agreement with Nuveen Natural Capital, LLC., to 
Facilitate Funding Opportunities and Related Due Diligence on the Timberlands Comprising the 
Lower Watershed of Jetty Creek.   

 
 

4. ADJOURNMENT 
Start time: 05:26:38 PM (00:56:29) 
 
McGinnis inquired about cars for the Grand Marshal and Volunteer of the year in the parade. Shepard 
explained that the parade event coordinator managed it. 
 
Martine made a motion, seconded by Franken, to adjourn the meeting at 5:26 p.m. 
 
The motion carried by the following vote: 
 
Position #2 - Tom Martine: Motion 
Position #4 - Alesia Franken: 2nd 
Position #3 - Kristine Hayes: Approve 
Position #4 - Alesia Franken: Approve 
Position #1 - Mary McGinnis: Approve 
Position #5 - Penelope Cheek: Approve 
Position #2 - Tom Martine: Approve 
 
 
      
 MINUTES APPROVED THIS 
 17TH DAY OF JULY 2024 

 
 

               ______________________________ 
Charles McNeilly, Mayor  

ATTEST  
 
 

avca:d05ec138-c8d7-4549-b989-b42065f26387@00:42:56
avca:d05ec138-c8d7-4549-b989-b42065f26387@00:56:29
avca:d05ec138-c8d7-4549-b989-b42065f26387@00:57:30
avca:d05ec138-c8d7-4549-b989-b42065f26387@00:57:30
avca:d05ec138-c8d7-4549-b989-b42065f26387@00:57:30
avca:d05ec138-c8d7-4549-b989-b42065f26387@00:57:30
avca:d05ec138-c8d7-4549-b989-b42065f26387@00:57:30
avca:d05ec138-c8d7-4549-b989-b42065f26387@00:57:30
avca:d05ec138-c8d7-4549-b989-b42065f26387@00:57:30
avca:d05ec138-c8d7-4549-b989-b42065f26387@00:57:30


 

Rockaway Beach City Council   Page 3 of 3 
Workshop Minutes – June 12, 2024 

___________________________  
Melissa Thompson, City Recorder  



 

Strategic Planning Retreat Minutes 
June 11, 2024        Page 1 of 2 

City of Rockaway Beach 
City Council Strategic Planning Retreat Minutes   
 
Date:   Tuesday, June 11, 2024  
Time:   9:00 a.m. – 4:00 p.m. 
Location:  Rockaway Beach City Hall, 276 Hwy 101 - Civic Facility  
               
 
CITY OF ROCKAWAY BEACH: STRATEGIC PLANNING RETREAT 
 
PURPOSE 
The City Council and City Leadership Team will provide direction on the City’s strategic plan. The Team will 
discuss the current state of Rockaway Beach and identify themes to guide the engagement of the 
community and organization in planning for the future.  
 
 
WORKSHOP OUTCOMES 

• Build a shared understanding of the current Rockaway Beach environment to inform the vision 
and goals for the Strategic Plan 

• Map out ideas for the Strategic Plan that address community and organizational challenges 
and opportunities 

• Gather final input on the communications and engagement strategy for the strategic plan and 
share next steps with the team 

 
1. Call to Order: Welcome, Mayor & City Manager  

The meeting was called to order at 9:06 a.m. 
 
Council Members Present: Mayor: Charles McNeilly 
Councilors: Penny Cheek, Mary McGinnis, Tom Martine, Kristine Hayes, Alesia Franken 

 Staff Present: Luke Shepard, City Manager; Melissa Thompson, City Recorder; Mary Johnson, City 
Planner; Marni Johnston, Finance Director; Dan Emerson, Public Works Superintendent; and Todd 
Hesse, Fire Chief 
Consultants Present: Sara Singer Wilson, Ashley Sonoff, and Sasha Konell, SSW Consulting (SSW 

Team) 
 
McNeilly and Shepard made introductory remarks. 

2. Agenda Overview 
• Sara Singer Wilson, SSW Consulting, reviewed the purpose, outcomes, agenda, and ground 

rules. 
• Ashley Sonoff led participants in an introduction and warm-up activity.  
 

3. Strategic Plan Process Overview 
• Wilson shared a Strategic Plan Game Plan handout and provided an overview of the strategic 

plan process.  
 
4. Environmental Scan: Context Mapping Exercise 

• SSW Team led participants through a mapping exercise to identify Rockaway Beach’s 
Context (Community Trends, Political Factors, Economic Climate, Organizational Trends, 
Technology Factors, Uncertainties) 

• Participants discussed the themes from the Context Exercise. 



 

Strategic Planning Retreat Minutes 
June 11, 2024        Page 2 of 2 

 
11:05-11:20 AM Recessed for Morning Break  

5. Visioning Exercise 
• Small groups participated in a visioning exercise, discussing current trends and envisioning 

what they hoped to see in the future.  
 
12:00-12:45 PM Recessed for Lunch 

 
6. Vision Exercise Wrap-up 

• Small groups shared their vision stories, and the larger group discussed the themes 
heard across the stories to begin building draft vision and goal focus areas. 

 
7. Idea Mapping Exercise 

• Using the themes from the Visioning Exercise, the group worked together to begin mapping out 
potential actions and ideas to further refine the goal areas. 

 
2:10-2:25 PM  Recessed for Break 

 
8. Communication + Engagement Strategy Review + Discussion 

• Consultants presented the Communication + Engagement Strategy and gathered final input 
from the team. 

 
9. Wrap-up + Reflect 

• Participants reviewed the Workshop Outcomes and reflected on activities and next steps to 
implement the plan. 

• Strategic Plan Next Steps – SSW will send notes; finalize communications and engagement 
strategy and develop tools (surveys, etc.); July-Aug engagement. 

 
10. Adjourn 

 The meeting adjourned at 3:25 p.m. 
 
SSW Consulting notes and images from the meeting are attached to and made a part of these minutes 
as Attachment A. 
 

 
MINUTES APPROVED THE 
17TH DAY OF JULY 2024 

 
         
                 ______________________________ 
         Charles McNeilly, Mayor  
 
 
 
 ATTEST  
 
 
           
Melissa Thompson, City Recorder  

 
 



Rockaway Beach Strategic Planning Retreat

Agenda Overview

Direction
Future

Focused

Competitive

Advantage

Strategic

Decisions

Mayor

McNeilly

Welcome

Luke

Shepard

Welcome

Great time

in

Rockaway

Beach

Timing of this

work to shape

and mold, staff,

leadership team

here to engage,

listen, support

You are the

City -

elected to

represent

Optimistically

look ahead

Attachment A - Strategic Plan Retreat Notes



Context Mapping Exercise

Optimism and resources available, but we are at capacity
Fire: staffing impacts services, response times, equipment replacement, emergency management program
(needs attention)
Essential services include water and sewer - keeping utility rates at a certain level is important to leverage
federal grants - look at sustainability and a solid plan for utilities
Infrastructure is a huge issue for us - water we have an ok system, but it needs some attention. We need staff to
be able to plan those projects, go after funding, manage the grants, and get those projects to happen
New infrastructure growth - more staff will be required - lacking a little bit on safety, training needs and
certifications
With new parks, tourism, public works is at capacity - no new PW employees in 17 years. Admin staff helps
support a lot to keep things rolling
Short-range and long-range planning - day to day/short-range takes a significant amount of time. There are a
lot of updates needed for comp plan, public hearings, etc. If we want growth, response times, policy work -
there is a lot to balance
In the coming five years, there will be a technology focus for managing meetings and documents. Coming FY,
we should be well-positioned to move some software platforms to improve information management for the
community. Need to move into electronic records management
Regarding capacity - the winter downtime has been more and more limited - shoulder season has shortened
We have become an employer of choice - attributed to the city manager, chief and public works, creating a
friendly work environment and support from Council. Competitive, professional level salaries
Succession planning and cross-training is important for our small organization
Public Works never slows down

We have a significant retired population who is very fee sensitive
5-7% of TRT is kept by the City and we have a rainy day fund/reserves
Housing for employees is challenging - it can take a long time for employees to
Need to focus on attracting invested tourists (those who stay, spend money
Need to focus on balancing our events that attract people throughout the year - Tourism should focus on eco-
tourism - be more strategic in efforts
Train brings at least 75,000 tourists each year
Businesses ability to staff up is based on limited workforce housing - median income housing lack off is a
drag on
Housing challenges related to development costs
Vacant storefronts and businesses that are closed for periods of time throughout the year
Fees and duration for business start up is challenging - jurisdictions provide layers
New park available to host markets
Layers of responsibility - Port, City, County, etc. Navigating in our city is very challenging
Limited property availability - costs are higher
Commercial space available - pricers are really cost prohibitive
Beach community that is easily accessed by the Portland metro - lots of good stuff going on

Tourism -12 months a year
Shorter shoulder season - creates challenges for staff
Workforce housing
Citizens have appreciated the improvements put in place for not just tourists
Meeting and convention space - something to host large events
Incentives for business development and property acquisition
Adequate and high quality water supply
High concentration of STRs, breaks down the connectedness of neighbors - need to
build that back
Could we annex additional land in Urban Growth Boundary
City receives calls for services that we don't provide (complaints between neighbors,
tree branches in right-of-way)
Map your neighborhood was a great opportunity to connect to neighbors
Park and rec services
Could the city encourage businesses that would serve year-round residents? Could
we attract more year round services? It's a hard place for shop/business owners to
operate when the #s drop
We are gathering data on our STRs and adjust the cap to right size our cap
Grant programs - facade improvement grants, storefront enhancements. Community
grants for non-profits. Marketing grants for businesses too - how can we increase
participation?
Transportation improvements along 101 and sidewalks
Community Center facility - parks and rec activities in a space
Bikeability, walkability, and recreational opportunities - Cedar tree, lake lytle,
salmonberry trail AND the beach (improve access)
Urban renewal
Flooding problem in Rockaway Beach - in the winter time

There can be an Us vs. Them mentality and stigma - make sure we are
creating a welcoming community for second homeowners
We could work more collaboratively with state, county and federal agencies -
the Salmonberry Trail is a great example of this
The biological opinion (BIOP) - FEMA regulations that will impact the
development of the community - cost prohibitive to develop in a floodplain
Regulatory groups/hoops that impact local business development - how can
we help people navigate
State mandates coming down - level of service is going down - creates
bottlenecks in our progress

Organizational Needs

Community Needs + Trends

Political Factors

Business sort into 3

groups - chamber,

business assoc, and

a third group

chooses to join

neither

Operate separate

from the city -

engagement

happens

separately and

takes capacity

Chamber was

just affiliated

with Oregon

Main Street

programs -

different orgs

Disparate

income levels in

the community -

rate increases

have different

impacts

Property tax

limitations -

Measures 4 + 50

Controls on use of

lodging tax at the

state level

Collaboration between

City and Chamber on

improving the downtown

corridor - Oregon Main

Street Program

Social media and

misinformation- it's a

difficult climate with

passion, comments, but

not always factual

Social media groups

does not allow for a

free flow of

information

Misinformation -

leads to divide in

community

Elections can change

the agenda - can shift

the agenda and how

we work together

AI

Telemetry - System for

water monitoring -

communication

between infrastructure

Technology for

Councilors -

currently don't

City wifi

Work from home

options

Electronic records

management -

disaster emerg.

Digital divide - there are

some members of our

community who will not

go online and expect

paper forms

Continuous

improvement focus

on the usability of

our website

Improved communication

platform (website ease of

use), outreach to

business community

Outdated equipment

- trying to keep up

with technology

Changing

demographics

Asset tracking

software

Applications -

electronic format

Rev. Sources, TRT

funds
Staff housing

Update charter and

ordinances

Revenue fluctuations

with tourists

Emergency services

coord.
NCRD district

North County health

district - lower cost

healthcare if they go into

that district - new facility

in Wheeler

Communications

director or manager

needed

Attachment A - Strategic Plan Retreat Notes



Visioning  Themes + Idea Mapping

What does hometown feel mean to you?
Talk with neighbors
Walk wherever you want to go
A lot of nature
Families
Not overly corporatized, fakeness
Authentic
Storefronts with older facade (kelly’s used to have cool old brick facade, round garbage labels from cannery, train, caboose
Wave to train as it goes by
Our signs look too much like Tillamook
Incentives for businesses to follow guidelines: Matching pavers, dark skylights, historic lighting
You call public works, they answer. No answering machine. They know your name. Comes through in City’s customer service
Someone calls Fire Dept to get question answered right away
Look at someone in the eye and smile – can tell they’re a local
Engage in conversation
Boundaries for developing commercial core to make it look “good” and let business owners decide what “good” looks like –
attractive, people drive through and want to pull over. Attractive aesthetic
‘The Rockaway Way’ – people wave,
We all moved here for reasons and we don’t want our way of life to change
It’s the people that make the community.
Our casual feel, not in a hurry
Speak to strangers on the street – how is your day going?
Collaborative and congenial attitude. People enjoy each other. Get along.
School district phenomenal and biggest employer in the county
Not presumptive. Affordable for families to come enjoy.
Taking the best of what we love about the hometown feel and make it better without changing the character – that is the
challenge of the strategic plan

Increased

staff

Outside

funding

Technology

Investments

Increased

Rec

opportunities

Expand

opportunities

for indoor rec

Salmonberry Trail

safety for kids

Recreation

opps

Honor

history

Community

identity -

preserve a

hometown

feel

Balanced

quality of life

for residents

+ tourists

Harmony

Resilience

Health + safety

Clean

drinking water

safe fire dept

Capital

improvements

+ infrastructure

investments
New Street lights

- salmonberry,

water,

wastewater,

sidewalks, 6th to

6th street

Enhancement

updates to

commercial

core

Economic

Opportunity

Housing

Educational

opportunities

in terms of

Rec

Fire Dept is in

high ground +

PW is in

inundation

zone

Water

existing

infrastructure

protect, acquire,

monitor

watershed

Community

Connection

Community

gathering

space

Economic

Dev

committee

Community

Events

Support for

business

development

- Partnerships

Affordability

Rec Sports

Leagues

- softball

- kickball

Partnership

districts

School district

partnership

for program +

activities

Update

comprehensive

plan

Update

charter +

ordinances

How should the

City

communicate?

Info

Channels

What

emergency

preparedness

plans do you

want?

Emergency

Preparedness -

Nehalem Bay

Scale of

event?

Parking

Quantity

downtown

Neighborhood

(STR multiple

cars)

City

Organization

Recreation

Economic

Opportunity

Resiliency

Community

Connection

+

Engagement

Attachment A - Strategic Plan Retreat Notes



Communication + Engagement Plan

Rockaway

Beach

Business

Association

(RBBA)

Friends

Camp

Stakeholders

to include

Engagement

Tools

Camp

Magruder

Churches -

Community

Church, St.

Marys, Twin

Rocks, One on

3rd Street

Nedonna

Beach

Nonprofit

Twin Rocks

Area

Distinguish

outside voices

vs. residents/

voters

Chamber

Make sure you

engage

businesses

outside of these

two groups

Make sure you

engage

businesses

outside of these

two groups

Email

distribution to

boards and

commissions

Direct mail

through

utility bills

Update

school

district to SD

RBBA email

list

How to

reach

renters

Post Office

Bulletin

Board

Post Office

Bulletin

Board

Flyers at

local

businesses

Flyers at

local

businesses

Lions
Senior

Meals

NW Senior +

Disabilities

Picnic

Library

School

District

Admin

Office

Survey

Presentations

Senior

Meals -

French Toast

Breakfasts

City listserv

All Business

Orgs

RBBA +

Unaffiliated

+ Chamber

Contact School

Counselor - ask

about

engaging youth

Engagement

Tool Kit for

Staff/ Council

+ Partners

Attachment A - Strategic Plan Retreat Notes



Reflection + Wrap-up

How will you work together to bring
this work forward?

That we all

support it

Work as a

team

Process- having

a defined

process to

ensure we move

it forward

Adopt the

process to

use it +

make it real

Prioritize the

collaboration

to move

things forward

Focus on

capturing any

federal funds to

support these

big projects

As a newly

growing

community, we

want to promote

connectivity

The plan will

bring the

community in

to our process

The plan is

inclusive of

EVERYONE

The process fosters

communication and

allows a unified

approach +

response to our

why

This is about

our residents,

our visitors

and the

collective

This plan will

protect the

staff

Nice to have it

written out so

we can always

visualize it

Nice to have the

priorities all

together +

written out over

the next five

years

Communicate +

Focus -- having

clear priorities

to guide our

work is crucial

Next Steps

SSW send

notes

Finalize the

Comms

Strategy

Develop tools

- tool kit,

printed

materials, etc.

Plan

community

leader

interviews

Launch

survey

Attachment A - Strategic Plan Retreat Notes



Attachment A - Strategic Plan Retreat Notes



CITY OF ROCKAWAY BEACH

REVENUES WITH COMPARISON TO BUDGET

FOR THE 12 MONTHS ENDING JUNE 30, 2024

GENERAL FUND

PERIOD ACTUAL YTD ACTUAL BUDGET UNEARNED PCNT

FOR ADMINISTRATION USE ONLY 100 % OF THE FISCAL YEAR HAS ELAPSED  07/09/2024     09:27AM       PAGE: 1

REVENUES & RESOURCES

10-31-4010 CUR YR PROP TX - GEN FUND 14,147.42 496,795.46 435,000.00 (              61,795.46) 114.2

10-31-4020 DELINQUENT PROP TAX REVENUE 607.20 7,381.87 8,500.00 1,118.13 86.9

10-31-4040 LIQUOR TAX - OLCC 2,265.10 28,147.32 26,000.00 (                2,147.32) 108.3

10-31-4050 CIGARETTE TAX 78.24 1,001.96 1,200.00 198.04 83.5

10-31-4060 OTHER TAX REVENUE 11,592.11 63,587.30 30,000.00 (              33,587.30) 212.0

TOTAL REVENUES & RESOURCES 28,690.07 596,913.91 500,700.00 (              96,213.91) 119.2

GRANTS, LOANS & BONDS

10-33-4175 GRANTS - GENERAL FUND MISC 5,000.00 39,145.00 .00 (              39,145.00) .0

10-33-4180 DLCD GRANT .00 2,000.00 .00 (                2,000.00) .0

10-33-4185 STATE REVENUE SHARING .00 18,099.92 20,000.00 1,900.08 90.5

TOTAL GRANTS, LOANS & BONDS 5,000.00 59,244.92 20,000.00 (              39,244.92) 296.2

FEES & SERVICES

10-34-4060 LICENSES & FRANCHISES 8,925.85 439,889.30 280,000.00 (            159,889.30) 157.1

10-34-4080 PERMITS, BLDG TILL CO PORTION .00 200.00 .00 (                   200.00) .0

10-34-4085 LAND USE-ORDINANCE FEES-PERMIT 2,475.00 26,123.50 21,000.00 (                5,123.50) 124.4

10-34-4141 CIVIC/COMM CENTER RENT 345.00 2,350.00 850.00 (                1,500.00) 276.5

10-34-4142 FIRST FLOOR RENT-HLTH DEPT 946.00 11,352.00 11,500.00 148.00 98.7

10-34-4145 CC-REFUNDABLE DEPOSITS .00 .00 500.00 500.00 .0

10-34-4146 HEALTH DEPT UTILITY REIMB 99.58 2,567.65 2,650.00 82.35 96.9

TOTAL FEES & SERVICES 12,791.43 482,482.45 316,500.00 (            165,982.45) 152.4

FIRE DEPARTMENT

10-35-4091 NEDONNA FIRE DIST .00 33,000.00 30,000.00 (                3,000.00) 110.0

10-35-4092 TWIN ROCKS WATER DISTRICT 10,000.00 10,000.00 10,000.00 .00 100.0

10-35-4093 OR STATE FORESTRY DEPT .00 .00 500.00 500.00 .0

10-35-4185 FIRE PERMITS .00 .00 50.00 50.00 .0

10-35-4186 EMERGENCY SERVICES FEE 20,610.00 125,284.38 125,000.00 (                   284.38) 100.2

TOTAL FIRE DEPARTMENT 30,610.00 168,284.38 165,550.00 (                2,734.38) 101.7

OTHER REVENUES

10-36-4120 INTEREST ON INVESTED FUNDS 31,891.11 278,062.79 12,500.00 (            265,562.79) 2224.5

10-36-4150 MISC RCPTS - GEN FUND 455.00 7,606.23 12,000.00 4,393.77 63.4

10-36-4190 SURPLUS PROPERTY SALES .00 .00 1,000.00 1,000.00 .0

TOTAL OTHER REVENUES 32,346.11 285,669.02 25,500.00 (            260,169.02) 1120.3

DRAFT



CITY OF ROCKAWAY BEACH

REVENUES WITH COMPARISON TO BUDGET

FOR THE 12 MONTHS ENDING JUNE 30, 2024

GENERAL FUND

PERIOD ACTUAL YTD ACTUAL BUDGET UNEARNED PCNT

FOR ADMINISTRATION USE ONLY 100 % OF THE FISCAL YEAR HAS ELAPSED  07/09/2024     09:27AM       PAGE: 2

POLICE DEPARTMENT

10-37-4100 CITATIONS - FINES & FORFEITS 56.25 6,338.38 15,000.00 8,661.62 42.3

TOTAL POLICE DEPARTMENT 56.25 6,338.38 15,000.00 8,661.62 42.3

TRANSFERS

10-39-4030 TIF - TRT POLICE 172,461.00 344,921.00 344,921.00 .00 100.0

10-39-4032 TIF  -SEWER OP 22,500.00 45,000.00 45,000.00 .00 100.0

10-39-4037 TIF - CC 22,500.00 45,000.00 45,000.00 .00 100.0

10-39-4038 TIF- TRT-GF PW CAP OUTLAY 30,203.00 60,405.00 60,405.00 .00 100.0

10-39-4052 TIF - TRT-CTY BEAUTIF 2,500.00 5,000.00 5,000.00 .00 100.0

10-39-4053 TIF - TRT FIRE DEPT 210,913.00 421,825.00 421,825.00 .00 100.0

10-39-4055 TIF - TRT USDA LOAN 32,000.00 64,000.00 64,000.00 .00 100.0

TOTAL TRANSFERS 493,077.00 986,151.00 986,151.00 .00 100.0

TOTAL FUND REVENUE 602,570.86 2,585,084.06 2,029,401.00 (            555,683.06) 127.4

DRAFT



CITY OF ROCKAWAY BEACH

EXPENDITURES WITH COMPARISON TO BUDGET

FOR THE 12 MONTHS ENDING JUNE 30, 2024

GENERAL FUND

PERIOD ACTUAL YTD ACTUAL BUDGET UNEXPENDED PCNT

FOR ADMINISTRATION USE ONLY 100 % OF THE FISCAL YEAR HAS ELAPSED  07/09/2024     09:27AM       PAGE: 3

POLICE DEPARTMENT

10-45-6531 CODE ENFORCEMENT .00 .00 65,000.00 65,000.00 .0

10-45-6550 MATERIALS SUPPLIES 22,255.45 254,000.74 564,712.00 310,711.26 45.0

TOTAL POLICE DEPARTMENT 22,255.45 254,000.74 629,712.00 375,711.26 40.3

FIRE DEPARTMENT

10-46-5052 FIRE CHIEF WAGES 8,356.24 101,721.18 102,700.00 978.82 99.1

10-46-5053 FIREFIGHTERS 10,094.17 155,674.24 138,136.00 (              17,538.24) 112.7

10-46-5054 OVERTIME-FIRE DEPARTMENT 221.24 4,902.39 5,000.00 97.61 98.1

10-46-5061 VOLUNTEER FIRE FIGHTER BONUS .00 46,826.72 41,250.00 (                5,576.72) 113.5

10-46-5062 RECORD KEEPING & TRAINING 125.00 1,875.00 3,500.00 1,625.00 53.6

10-46-5152 PAYROLL EXPENSES - FIRE 11,290.18 167,376.59 223,697.00 56,320.41 74.8

10-46-6110 ELECTRICITY .00 2,803.05 3,500.00 696.95 80.1

10-46-6530 TELEPHONE 326.48 15,115.75 8,500.00 (                6,615.75) 177.8

10-46-6535 MEDICAL .00 8,949.54 10,000.00 1,050.46 89.5

10-46-6555 SUPPLIES, GEAR & SERVICES 315.00 28,425.83 40,000.00 11,574.17 71.1

10-46-6570 INS- VEHICLE, LIAB, EQUIP, BLD .00 15,854.40 20,000.00 4,145.60 79.3

10-46-6580 FUEL & OIL 1,028.19 7,088.89 10,000.00 2,911.11 70.9

10-46-6582 ELECTRONIC REP-MAINT .00 .00 1,500.00 1,500.00 .0

10-46-6630 FIRE BLDG MAINT .00 2,171.61 15,000.00 12,828.39 14.5

10-46-6660 SAFETY TRAINING & FIRST AID .00 6,085.31 14,000.00 7,914.69 43.5

10-46-6670 REQUIRED EQUIP TESTING .00 6,822.90 10,000.00 3,177.10 68.2

10-46-6690 VEHICLE MAINT, SUP & REP .00 6,241.62 20,000.00 13,758.38 31.2

TOTAL FIRE DEPARTMENT 31,756.50 577,935.02 666,783.00 88,847.98 86.7

DRAFT



CITY OF ROCKAWAY BEACH

EXPENDITURES WITH COMPARISON TO BUDGET

FOR THE 12 MONTHS ENDING JUNE 30, 2024

GENERAL FUND

PERIOD ACTUAL YTD ACTUAL BUDGET UNEXPENDED PCNT

FOR ADMINISTRATION USE ONLY 100 % OF THE FISCAL YEAR HAS ELAPSED  07/09/2024     09:27AM       PAGE: 4

ADMINISTRATION

10-48-5057 OFFICE ASSISTANT 9,359.75 126,128.05 119,390.00 (                6,738.05) 105.6

10-48-5065 OVERTIME - CITY HALL .00 .00 4,000.00 4,000.00 .0

10-48-5075 ACCRUED VACATION - ADMIN .00 1,472.67 5,000.00 3,527.33 29.5

10-48-5082 CITY MANAGER 7,612.77 92,206.03 83,790.00 (                8,416.03) 110.0

10-48-5085 MAYOR & COUNCIL STIPEND 175.00 1,500.00 1,100.00 (                   400.00) 136.4

10-48-5152 PAYROLL EXP - ADMIN 8,903.30 115,705.06 172,690.00 56,984.94 67.0

10-48-6110 ELECTRICITY 42.80 42.80 .00 (                     42.80) .0

10-48-6410 PLANNING & ZONING .00 23,264.21 155,000.00 131,735.79 15.0

10-48-6440 REFUNDABLE DEPOSITS .00 50.00 500.00 450.00 10.0

10-48-6530 TELEPHONE 81.62 4,134.47 6,000.00 1,865.53 68.9

10-48-6570 INS-VEHICLE, LIAB, EQUIP, BLDG .00 12,177.53 8,000.00 (                4,177.53) 152.2

10-48-6571 TECHNOLOGY & DATA PROCESSING .00 47,003.84 45,000.00 (                2,003.84) 104.5

10-48-6577 ORDINANCE UPDATE .00 777.45 2,500.00 1,722.55 31.1

10-48-6596 EMERGENCY SERVICES EXPENSE .00 .00 2,000.00 2,000.00 .0

10-48-6666 CITY BEAUTIFICATION .00 1,074.16 3,000.00 1,925.84 35.8

10-48-6667 STORM DAMAGE REPAIR .00 .00 100.00 100.00 .0

10-48-6830 CITY HALL OPERATIONS (                2,004.62) 29,824.85 83,000.00 53,175.15 35.9

10-48-6831 DUES-CITY, OFFICIALS & STAFF .00 4,164.45 2,500.00 (                1,664.45) 166.6

10-48-6835 BANK FEES .15 496.54 2,000.00 1,503.46 24.8

10-48-6840 COURT COSTS .00 .00 100.00 100.00 .0

10-48-6850 ATTORNEY .00 30,151.50 29,000.00 (                1,151.50) 104.0

10-48-6870 AUDIT & BOND .00 7,741.29 8,000.00 258.71 96.8

10-48-6880 ADVERTISING 20.00 2,435.58 2,000.00 (                   435.58) 121.8

10-48-6890 STATIONERY & SUPPLIES .00 6,218.80 12,000.00 5,781.20 51.8

10-48-6915 TRAVEL & TRAIN-STAFF .00 3,542.73 5,000.00 1,457.27 70.9

10-48-6920 BLDG MAINT-CTY HALL 3,463.28 18,290.63 35,000.00 16,709.37 52.3

10-48-6931 COUNCIL EXPENSE .00 2,673.81 1,000.00 (                1,673.81) 267.4

10-48-6932 CITY MANAGER FUND .00 371.59 500.00 128.41 74.3

10-48-6954 REVENUE SHARING PMTS .00 60,000.00 60,000.00 .00 100.0

10-48-6999 OPERATING CONTINGENCY - GF .00 .00 200,000.00 200,000.00 .0

10-48-8000 GENERAL FUND CAPITAL PROJECTS .00 7,080.00 60,405.00 53,325.00 11.7

10-48-8041 TO - ROADS/STREETS, FRANCHISE 24,685.00 49,370.00 49,370.00 .00 100.0

10-48-8044 TO -FIRE EQUIPMENT RESERVE 22,500.00 45,000.00 45,000.00 .00 100.0

10-48-8518 DEBT SVC - GF LOANS & DEBT SVC 599.66 96,873.17 140,000.00 43,126.83 69.2

TOTAL ADMINISTRATION 75,438.71 789,771.21 1,342,945.00 553,173.79 58.8

TOTAL FUND EXPENDITURES 129,450.66 1,621,706.97 2,639,440.00 1,017,733.03 61.4

NET REVENUE OVER EXPENDITURES 473,120.20 963,377.09 (            610,039.00) (         1,573,416.09) 157.9

DRAFT



CITY OF ROCKAWAY BEACH

REVENUES WITH COMPARISON TO BUDGET

FOR THE 12 MONTHS ENDING JUNE 30, 2024

LOAN PAYMENT RESERVE FUND

PERIOD ACTUAL YTD ACTUAL BUDGET UNEXPENDED PCNT

FOR ADMINISTRATION USE ONLY 100 % OF THE FISCAL YEAR HAS ELAPSED  07/09/2024     09:27AM       PAGE: 5

OTHER INCOME

16-36-4120 INTEREST INCOME .00 .00 2,500.00 2,500.00 .0

TOTAL OTHER INCOME .00 .00 2,500.00 2,500.00 .0

TOTAL FUND REVENUE .00 .00 2,500.00 2,500.00 .0

NET REVENUE OVER EXPENDITURES .00 .00 2,500.00 2,500.00 .0

DRAFT



CITY OF ROCKAWAY BEACH

REVENUES WITH COMPARISON TO BUDGET

FOR THE 12 MONTHS ENDING JUNE 30, 2024

PROJECT & EQUIP RESERVE

PERIOD ACTUAL YTD ACTUAL BUDGET UNEXPENDED PCNT

FOR ADMINISTRATION USE ONLY 100 % OF THE FISCAL YEAR HAS ELAPSED  07/09/2024     09:28AM       PAGE: 6

OTHER INCOME

21-36-4120 INTEREST INCOME 404.68 3,528.77 3,000.00 (                   528.77) 117.6

TOTAL OTHER INCOME 404.68 3,528.77 3,000.00 (                   528.77) 117.6

TRANSFERS IN

21-39-4030 TIF - TRT 595,241.00 1,190,481.00 1,190,481.00 .00 100.0

TOTAL TRANSFERS IN 595,241.00 1,190,481.00 1,190,481.00 .00 100.0

TOTAL FUND REVENUE 595,645.68 1,194,009.77 1,193,481.00 (                   528.77) 100.0

DRAFT



CITY OF ROCKAWAY BEACH

EXPENDITURES WITH COMPARISON TO BUDGET

FOR THE 12 MONTHS ENDING JUNE 30, 2024

PROJECT & EQUIP RESERVE

PERIOD ACTUAL YTD ACTUAL BUDGET UNEXPENDED PCNT

FOR ADMINISTRATION USE ONLY 100 % OF THE FISCAL YEAR HAS ELAPSED  07/09/2024     09:28AM       PAGE: 7

CAPITAL OUTLAY

21-47-7577 TOURISM CAPITAL PROJECTS 167,238.26 2,102,793.04 2,425,000.00 322,206.96 86.7

TOTAL CAPITAL OUTLAY 167,238.26 2,102,793.04 2,425,000.00 322,206.96 86.7

TOTAL FUND EXPENDITURES 167,238.26 2,102,793.04 2,425,000.00 322,206.96 86.7

NET REVENUE OVER EXPENDITURES 428,407.42 (            908,783.27) (         1,231,519.00) (            322,735.73) (  73.8)

DRAFT



CITY OF ROCKAWAY BEACH

REVENUES WITH COMPARISON TO BUDGET

FOR THE 12 MONTHS ENDING JUNE 30, 2024

ROADS & STREETS

PERIOD ACTUAL YTD ACTUAL BUDGET UNEXPENDED PCNT

FOR ADMINISTRATION USE ONLY 100 % OF THE FISCAL YEAR HAS ELAPSED  07/09/2024     09:28AM       PAGE: 8

STATE REVENUE

30-31-2985 RESTRICTED BIKE PATHS ODOT .00 .00 1,000.00 1,000.00 .0

30-31-4340 STATE STREET - DMV - REVENUE 10,630.11 119,261.31 114,000.00 (                5,261.31) 104.6

TOTAL STATE REVENUE 10,630.11 119,261.31 115,000.00 (                4,261.31) 103.7

GRANTS

30-33-4182 GRANTS & REIM- ROADS & STREETS .00 650.40 .00 (                   650.40) .0

TOTAL GRANTS .00 650.40 .00 (                   650.40) .0

OTHER REVENUE

30-36-4120 INTEREST INCOME 5,031.19 43,872.22 16,500.00 (              27,372.22) 265.9

TOTAL OTHER REVENUE 5,031.19 43,872.22 16,500.00 (              27,372.22) 265.9

TRANSFERS

30-39-4030 TIF - TRT 185,463.00 370,926.00 370,926.00 .00 100.0

30-39-4038 TIF - GEN FND 24,685.00 49,370.00 49,370.00 .00 100.0

TOTAL TRANSFERS 210,148.00 420,296.00 420,296.00 .00 100.0

TOTAL FUND REVENUE 225,809.30 584,079.93 551,796.00 (              32,283.93) 105.9

DRAFT



CITY OF ROCKAWAY BEACH

EXPENDITURES WITH COMPARISON TO BUDGET

FOR THE 12 MONTHS ENDING JUNE 30, 2024

ROADS & STREETS

PERIOD ACTUAL YTD ACTUAL BUDGET UNEXPENDED PCNT

FOR ADMINISTRATION USE ONLY 100 % OF THE FISCAL YEAR HAS ELAPSED  07/09/2024     09:28AM       PAGE: 9

PERSONNEL SERVICES

30-41-5055 MAINT WKR WAGES 7,213.59 73,397.27 75,658.00 2,260.73 97.0

30-41-5056 EXTRA LABOR .00 .00 2,000.00 2,000.00 .0

30-41-5058 SUPER OF PUBLIC WORKS 774.08 8,207.39 11,090.00 2,882.61 74.0

30-41-5065 OVERTIME .00 .00 2,000.00 2,000.00 .0

30-41-5075 ACCRUED VAC - RDS & STS .00 .00 2,000.00 2,000.00 .0

30-41-5082 CTY MANAGER - RDS & STS 1,087.54 13,172.38 11,970.00 (                1,202.38) 110.0

30-41-5085 MAYOR & COUNCIL STIPEND 25.00 300.00 500.00 200.00 60.0

30-41-5152 PAYROLL EXP - RDS & STS 5,220.22 60,738.67 82,858.00 22,119.33 73.3

TOTAL PERSONNEL SERVICES 14,320.43 155,815.71 188,076.00 32,260.29 82.9

MATERIALS & SERVICES

30-45-6125 ELECTRIC-STLITES-WYSD-CTYPRKS .00 1,853.20 2,100.00 246.80 88.3

30-45-6130 WAYSIDE & PARKS 130.10 28,932.63 35,000.00 6,067.37 82.7

30-45-6131 NATURE CONSERVANCY .00 2,352.99 5,000.00 2,647.01 47.1

30-45-6570 INS-VEHICLE, LIAB, EQUIP, BLDG .00 6,110.01 5,000.00 (                1,110.01) 122.2

30-45-6572 STREET LIGHTS 36.00 15,828.28 23,000.00 7,171.72 68.8

30-45-6580 FUEL & OIL 685.46 3,998.07 7,000.00 3,001.93 57.1

30-45-6592 PARKING LEASE .00 1,570.68 1,500.00 (                     70.68) 104.7

30-45-6600 DRAINAGE & FLOOD CONTROL .00 3,927.35 10,000.00 6,072.65 39.3

30-45-6610 SIDEWALKS, CURBS & FOOTPATHS 1,344.09 1,407.40 4,000.00 2,592.60 35.2

30-45-6620 STREET SIGNS .00 472.67 6,000.00 5,527.33 7.9

30-45-6667 STORM DAMAGE REPAIR .00 4,236.34 1,000.00 (                3,236.34) 423.6

30-45-6690 VEHICLE MAINT, SUPP & REP .00 3,095.10 15,000.00 11,904.90 20.6

30-45-6800 ROADS, MATERIALS & SUPPLIES 1,018.90 19,312.85 32,000.00 12,687.15 60.4

TOTAL MATERIALS & SERVICES 3,214.55 93,097.57 146,600.00 53,502.43 63.5

CAPITAL OUTLAY

30-47-7502 RDS-STS IMPROVEMENT PROJECTS 2,973.75 46,240.02 67,000.00 20,759.98 69.0

30-47-7506 RDS-STS: CAPITAL IMPROV PLAN .00 33,679.09 150,000.00 116,320.91 22.5

30-47-7507 RDS-STS PW MOBILE EQUIP PLAN .00 .00 30,000.00 30,000.00 .0

TOTAL CAPITAL OUTLAY 2,973.75 79,919.11 247,000.00 167,080.89 32.4

CONTINGENCY

30-48-7999 CONTINGENCY - ROADS .00 .00 50,000.00 50,000.00 .0

TOTAL CONTINGENCY .00 .00 50,000.00 50,000.00 .0

TOTAL FUND EXPENDITURES 20,508.73 328,832.39 631,676.00 302,843.61 52.1

DRAFT



CITY OF ROCKAWAY BEACH

EXPENDITURES WITH COMPARISON TO BUDGET

FOR THE 12 MONTHS ENDING JUNE 30, 2024

ROADS & STREETS

PERIOD ACTUAL YTD ACTUAL BUDGET UNEXPENDED PCNT

FOR ADMINISTRATION USE ONLY 100 % OF THE FISCAL YEAR HAS ELAPSED  07/09/2024     09:28AM       PAGE: 10

NET REVENUE OVER EXPENDITURES 205,300.57 255,247.54 (              79,880.00) (            335,127.54) 319.5

DRAFT



CITY OF ROCKAWAY BEACH

REVENUES WITH COMPARISON TO BUDGET

FOR THE 12 MONTHS ENDING JUNE 30, 2024

TRANSPORTATION SDC

PERIOD ACTUAL YTD ACTUAL BUDGET UNEXPENDED PCNT

FOR ADMINISTRATION USE ONLY 100 % OF THE FISCAL YEAR HAS ELAPSED  07/09/2024     09:28AM       PAGE: 11

OTHER INCOME

39-36-4120 INTEREST INCOME 338.08 2,562.06 1,000.00 (                1,562.06) 256.2

TOTAL OTHER INCOME 338.08 2,562.06 1,000.00 (                1,562.06) 256.2

FEES

39-38-4940 IMP FEES - TRANSPORT SDC .00 14,400.00 18,000.00 3,600.00 80.0

TOTAL FEES .00 14,400.00 18,000.00 3,600.00 80.0

TOTAL FUND REVENUE 338.08 16,962.06 19,000.00 2,037.94 89.3

DRAFT



CITY OF ROCKAWAY BEACH

EXPENDITURES WITH COMPARISON TO BUDGET

FOR THE 12 MONTHS ENDING JUNE 30, 2024

TRANSPORTATION SDC

PERIOD ACTUAL YTD ACTUAL BUDGET UNEXPENDED PCNT

FOR ADMINISTRATION USE ONLY 100 % OF THE FISCAL YEAR HAS ELAPSED  07/09/2024     09:28AM       PAGE: 12

CAPITAL OUTLAY

39-47-7880 CONT MAT - IMP TRANS .00 .00 185,000.00 185,000.00 .0

TOTAL CAPITAL OUTLAY .00 .00 185,000.00 185,000.00 .0

TOTAL FUND EXPENDITURES .00 .00 185,000.00 185,000.00 .0

NET REVENUE OVER EXPENDITURES 338.08 16,962.06 (            166,000.00) (            182,962.06) 10.2

DRAFT



CITY OF ROCKAWAY BEACH

REVENUES WITH COMPARISON TO BUDGET

FOR THE 12 MONTHS ENDING JUNE 30, 2024

WATER OPERATING

PERIOD ACTUAL YTD ACTUAL BUDGET UNEXPENDED PCNT

FOR ADMINISTRATION USE ONLY 100 % OF THE FISCAL YEAR HAS ELAPSED  07/09/2024     09:28AM       PAGE: 13

REVENUE

40-34-4540 WATER SERVICE BASE 211,932.99 1,281,911.75 1,215,040.00 (              66,871.75) 105.5

40-34-4550 NEW WATER CONNECTIONS .00 23,790.00 28,250.00 4,460.00 84.2

40-34-4560 WATER MASTER PLAN 12,728.73 76,901.91 74,375.00 (                2,526.91) 103.4

TOTAL REVENUE 224,661.72 1,382,603.66 1,317,665.00 (              64,938.66) 104.9

INTEREST & MISC

40-36-4120 INT - WATER OP 2,243.38 20,778.94 5,500.00 (              15,278.94) 377.8

40-36-4150 MISC RCPTS - WTR OP FUND 3,512.50 20,635.42 2,825,800.00 2,805,164.58 .7

TOTAL INTEREST & MISC 5,755.88 41,414.36 2,831,300.00 2,789,885.64 1.5

TOTAL FUND REVENUE 230,417.60 1,424,018.02 4,148,965.00 2,724,946.98 34.3

DRAFT



CITY OF ROCKAWAY BEACH

EXPENDITURES WITH COMPARISON TO BUDGET

FOR THE 12 MONTHS ENDING JUNE 30, 2024

WATER OPERATING

PERIOD ACTUAL YTD ACTUAL BUDGET UNEXPENDED PCNT

FOR ADMINISTRATION USE ONLY 100 % OF THE FISCAL YEAR HAS ELAPSED  07/09/2024     09:28AM       PAGE: 14

PERSONNEL SERVICES

40-41-5054 CODE ENFORCEMENT .00 .00 2,338.00 2,338.00 .0

40-41-5055 MAINT WKR WAGE - WATER OP 7,431.79 96,599.74 112,500.00 15,900.26 85.9

40-41-5056 EXTRA LABOR - WTR OP .00 .00 2,000.00 2,000.00 .0

40-41-5057 OFFICE ASSISTANT WAGES - WTR O 9,623.66 127,925.50 121,443.00 (                6,482.50) 105.3

40-41-5058 SUPER PUB WKS - WTR OP 3,870.46 41,036.91 49,031.00 7,994.09 83.7

40-41-5059 PLANT OPERATOR - WATER OP 4,881.42 68,500.84 96,078.00 27,577.16 71.3

40-41-5064 STAND BY - WTR .00 .00 2,000.00 2,000.00 .0

40-41-5065 OVERTIME - WTR OP 206.04 4,350.63 14,000.00 9,649.37 31.1

40-41-5067 EMERGENCY SERVICES .00 .00 1,000.00 1,000.00 .0

40-41-5075 ACCRUED VAC - WATER OP .00 1,429.36 5,000.00 3,570.64 28.6

40-41-5082 CTY MANAGER - WTR OP 1,087.54 13,172.38 11,970.00 (                1,202.38) 110.0

40-41-5085 MAYOR & COUNCIL STIPEND 75.00 900.00 1,400.00 500.00 64.3

40-41-5152 PAYROLL EXP - WTR OP 14,905.16 190,849.76 289,633.00 98,783.24 65.9

TOTAL PERSONNEL SERVICES 42,081.07 544,765.12 708,393.00 163,627.88 76.9

MATERIALS & SERVICES

40-45-6110 ELECTRICITY 2,331.17 31,925.87 36,500.00 4,574.13 87.5

40-45-6455 EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT .00 .00 1,000.00 1,000.00 .0

40-45-6520 BUILDING MAINT .00 1,038.21 2,000.00 961.79 51.9

40-45-6530 TELEPHONE 1,171.38 13,485.03 12,000.00 (                1,485.03) 112.4

40-45-6534 PLANT CHEMICALS & SUPPLIES 1,341.79 27,516.69 35,000.00 7,483.31 78.6

40-45-6551 ADMIN & BILLING .00 29,359.26 19,000.00 (              10,359.26) 154.5

40-45-6570 INS-VEHICLE, LIAB, EQUIP, BLDG .00 24,237.07 29,000.00 4,762.93 83.6

40-45-6574 AUDIT .00 9,438.12 11,000.00 1,561.88 85.8

40-45-6580 FUEL & OIL 1,285.24 7,714.29 10,000.00 2,285.71 77.1

40-45-6667 STORM DAMAGE REPAIR .00 .00 500.00 500.00 .0

40-45-6690 VEHICLE MAINT, SUPP & REP .00 5,385.59 13,500.00 8,114.41 39.9

40-45-6745 REQUIRED TESTING .00 3,770.00 9,000.00 5,230.00 41.9

40-45-6750 SYSTEM MAINT & SUPP 537.72 58,336.67 63,000.00 4,663.33 92.6

40-45-6831 DUES .00 701.53 2,500.00 1,798.47 28.1

40-45-6850 ATTORNEY .00 117.50 12,000.00 11,882.50 1.0

40-45-6851 ENGINEERING 619.00 4,335.00 2,000.00 (                2,335.00) 216.8

40-45-6915 TRAVEL & TRAINING-STAFF 4,875.00 7,614.80 4,500.00 (                3,114.80) 169.2

40-45-6945 METER READERS .00 11,084.58 9,540.00 (                1,544.58) 116.2

40-45-6951 ORDINANCE ENFORCEMENT .00 .00 500.00 500.00 .0

TOTAL MATERIALS & SERVICES 12,161.30 236,060.21 272,540.00 36,479.79 86.6

CAPITAL OUTLAY

40-47-7601 IMPROVEMENT & NEW LINE 2,556.53 18,338.65 3,010,000.00 2,991,661.35 .6

40-47-7602 WATER CAPITAL OUTLAY .00 20,197.81 175,000.00 154,802.19 11.5

40-47-7603 WATER CAPITAL OUTLAY .00 37,640.79 40,000.00 2,359.21 94.1

TOTAL CAPITAL OUTLAY 2,556.53 76,177.25 3,225,000.00 3,148,822.75 2.4

DRAFT



CITY OF ROCKAWAY BEACH

EXPENDITURES WITH COMPARISON TO BUDGET

FOR THE 12 MONTHS ENDING JUNE 30, 2024

WATER OPERATING

PERIOD ACTUAL YTD ACTUAL BUDGET UNEXPENDED PCNT

FOR ADMINISTRATION USE ONLY 100 % OF THE FISCAL YEAR HAS ELAPSED  07/09/2024     09:28AM       PAGE: 15

CONTINGENCY

40-48-7999 CONTINGENCY - WTR .00 .00 30,000.00 30,000.00 .0

TOTAL CONTINGENCY .00 .00 30,000.00 30,000.00 .0

TRANSFERS

40-49-8027 TO - CC - CH OPERATING 22,500.00 45,000.00 45,000.00 .00 100.0

40-49-8045 TO -WMP FUND 150,000.00 300,000.00 300,000.00 .00 100.0

TOTAL TRANSFERS 172,500.00 345,000.00 345,000.00 .00 100.0

TOTAL FUND EXPENDITURES 229,298.90 1,202,002.58 4,580,933.00 3,378,930.42 26.2

NET REVENUE OVER EXPENDITURES 1,118.70 222,015.44 (            431,968.00) (            653,983.44) 51.4

DRAFT



CITY OF ROCKAWAY BEACH

REVENUES WITH COMPARISON TO BUDGET

FOR THE 12 MONTHS ENDING JUNE 30, 2024

WATER MASTER PLAN

PERIOD ACTUAL YTD ACTUAL BUDGET UNEXPENDED PCNT

FOR ADMINISTRATION USE ONLY 100 % OF THE FISCAL YEAR HAS ELAPSED  07/09/2024     09:28AM       PAGE: 16

OTHER INCOME

42-36-4120 INTEREST INCOME 5,007.55 43,665.66 12,000.00 (              31,665.66) 363.9

TOTAL OTHER INCOME 5,007.55 43,665.66 12,000.00 (              31,665.66) 363.9

TRANSFERS

42-39-4030 TIF - WATER OP 150,000.00 300,000.00 300,000.00 .00 100.0

TOTAL TRANSFERS 150,000.00 300,000.00 300,000.00 .00 100.0

TOTAL FUND REVENUE 155,007.55 343,665.66 312,000.00 (              31,665.66) 110.2

DRAFT



CITY OF ROCKAWAY BEACH

EXPENDITURES WITH COMPARISON TO BUDGET

FOR THE 12 MONTHS ENDING JUNE 30, 2024

WATER MASTER PLAN

PERIOD ACTUAL YTD ACTUAL BUDGET UNEXPENDED PCNT

FOR ADMINISTRATION USE ONLY 100 % OF THE FISCAL YEAR HAS ELAPSED  07/09/2024     09:28AM       PAGE: 17

CAPITAL OUTLAY

42-47-7555 WMP - IMPLIMENTATION PROJECTS .00 165,513.90 550,000.00 384,486.10 30.1

TOTAL CAPITAL OUTLAY .00 165,513.90 550,000.00 384,486.10 30.1

CONTINGENCY

42-48-7999 WATER MASTER PLAN CONTINGENCY .00 .00 30,000.00 30,000.00 .0

TOTAL CONTINGENCY .00 .00 30,000.00 30,000.00 .0

TOTAL FUND EXPENDITURES .00 165,513.90 580,000.00 414,486.10 28.5

NET REVENUE OVER EXPENDITURES 155,007.55 178,151.76 (            268,000.00) (            446,151.76) 66.5

DRAFT



CITY OF ROCKAWAY BEACH

REVENUES WITH COMPARISON TO BUDGET

FOR THE 12 MONTHS ENDING JUNE 30, 2024

WATER DEBT SERVICE

PERIOD ACTUAL YTD ACTUAL BUDGET UNEXPENDED PCNT

FOR ADMINISTRATION USE ONLY 100 % OF THE FISCAL YEAR HAS ELAPSED  07/09/2024     09:28AM       PAGE: 18

UTILITY BILLING

47-34-4550 WATER DEBT REVENUE 25,437.52 153,686.89 148,650.00 (                5,036.89) 103.4

TOTAL UTILITY BILLING 25,437.52 153,686.89 148,650.00 (                5,036.89) 103.4

OTHER INCOME

47-36-4120 INTEREST INCOME .00 1,876.68 1,200.00 (                   676.68) 156.4

TOTAL OTHER INCOME .00 1,876.68 1,200.00 (                   676.68) 156.4

TOTAL FUND REVENUE 25,437.52 155,563.57 149,850.00 (                5,713.57) 103.8

DRAFT



CITY OF ROCKAWAY BEACH

EXPENDITURES WITH COMPARISON TO BUDGET

FOR THE 12 MONTHS ENDING JUNE 30, 2024

WATER DEBT SERVICE

PERIOD ACTUAL YTD ACTUAL BUDGET UNEXPENDED PCNT

FOR ADMINISTRATION USE ONLY 100 % OF THE FISCAL YEAR HAS ELAPSED  07/09/2024     09:28AM       PAGE: 19

DEBT SERVICE

47-49-8512 NEDONNA BEACH WTR LINE - PRINC .00 .00 205,000.00 205,000.00 .0

47-49-8520 WATER PLANT DS - PRINC .00 30,000.00 30,000.00 .00 100.0

47-49-8521 WATER PLANT DS - INT .00 8,550.00 8,650.00 100.00 98.8

TOTAL DEBT SERVICE .00 38,550.00 243,650.00 205,100.00 15.8

TOTAL FUND EXPENDITURES .00 38,550.00 243,650.00 205,100.00 15.8

NET REVENUE OVER EXPENDITURES 25,437.52 117,013.57 (              93,800.00) (            210,813.57) 124.8

DRAFT



CITY OF ROCKAWAY BEACH

REVENUES WITH COMPARISON TO BUDGET

FOR THE 12 MONTHS ENDING JUNE 30, 2024

WATER SDC FUND

PERIOD ACTUAL YTD ACTUAL BUDGET UNEXPENDED PCNT

FOR ADMINISTRATION USE ONLY 100 % OF THE FISCAL YEAR HAS ELAPSED  07/09/2024     09:28AM       PAGE: 20

OTHER INCOME

49-36-4120 INTEREST INCOME 528.64 4,609.73 1,200.00 (                3,409.73) 384.1

TOTAL OTHER INCOME 528.64 4,609.73 1,200.00 (                3,409.73) 384.1

WATER SDC FEES

49-38-4935 REIMB FEES - WTR SDC FUND .00 9,384.00 9,800.00 416.00 95.8

49-38-4940 IMP FEES - WTR SDC FND .00 100,725.00 82,000.00 (              18,725.00) 122.8

TOTAL WATER SDC FEES .00 110,109.00 91,800.00 (              18,309.00) 119.9

TOTAL FUND REVENUE 528.64 114,718.73 93,000.00 (              21,718.73) 123.4

DRAFT



CITY OF ROCKAWAY BEACH

EXPENDITURES WITH COMPARISON TO BUDGET

FOR THE 12 MONTHS ENDING JUNE 30, 2024

WATER SDC FUND

PERIOD ACTUAL YTD ACTUAL BUDGET UNEXPENDED PCNT

FOR ADMINISTRATION USE ONLY 100 % OF THE FISCAL YEAR HAS ELAPSED  07/09/2024     09:28AM       PAGE: 21

CAPITAL OUTLAY

49-47-7880 CONT MAT - IMP WTR 2,556.53 17,791.65 310,000.00 292,208.35 5.7

49-47-7885 CONT MAT - REIMB WTR .00 819.00 225,000.00 224,181.00 .4

TOTAL CAPITAL OUTLAY 2,556.53 18,610.65 535,000.00 516,389.35 3.5

TOTAL FUND EXPENDITURES 2,556.53 18,610.65 535,000.00 516,389.35 3.5

NET REVENUE OVER EXPENDITURES (                2,027.89) 96,108.08 (            442,000.00) (            538,108.08) 21.7

DRAFT



CITY OF ROCKAWAY BEACH

REVENUES WITH COMPARISON TO BUDGET

FOR THE 12 MONTHS ENDING JUNE 30, 2024

SEWER OPERATING FUND

PERIOD ACTUAL YTD ACTUAL BUDGET UNEXPENDED PCNT

FOR ADMINISTRATION USE ONLY 100 % OF THE FISCAL YEAR HAS ELAPSED  07/09/2024     09:28AM       PAGE: 22

UTILITY BILLING

50-34-4640 SEWER SERVICE BASE 131,707.34 801,477.95 769,000.00 (              32,477.95) 104.2

50-34-4650 NEW SEWER CONNECTIONS .00 9,150.00 17,250.00 8,100.00 53.0

50-34-4660 SEWER MASTER PLAN 13,655.66 82,308.65 82,000.00 (                   308.65) 100.4

TOTAL UTILITY BILLING 145,363.00 892,936.60 868,250.00 (              24,686.60) 102.8

OTHER INCOME

50-36-4120 INTEREST INCOME 4,869.30 41,026.56 15,000.00 (              26,026.56) 273.5

50-36-4150 MISC RECEIPTS - SEWER 1,517.50 2,554.03 1,000.00 (                1,554.03) 255.4

TOTAL OTHER INCOME 6,386.80 43,580.59 16,000.00 (              27,580.59) 272.4

TOTAL FUND REVENUE 151,749.80 936,517.19 884,250.00 (              52,267.19) 105.9

DRAFT



CITY OF ROCKAWAY BEACH

EXPENDITURES WITH COMPARISON TO BUDGET

FOR THE 12 MONTHS ENDING JUNE 30, 2024

SEWER OPERATING FUND

PERIOD ACTUAL YTD ACTUAL BUDGET UNEXPENDED PCNT

FOR ADMINISTRATION USE ONLY 100 % OF THE FISCAL YEAR HAS ELAPSED  07/09/2024     09:28AM       PAGE: 23

PERSONNEL SERVICES

50-41-5055 MAINT WORKER WAGES 7,213.59 94,393.52 110,075.00 15,681.48 85.8

50-41-5056 EXTRA LABOR WAGES .00 .00 2,000.00 2,000.00 .0

50-41-5057 OFFICE ASST WAGE 9,623.66 127,925.45 121,441.00 (                6,484.45) 105.3

50-41-5058 SUPER PUB WORKS 3,096.38 32,829.55 39,508.00 6,678.45 83.1

50-41-5059 PLANT OP WAGES 4,881.41 65,404.34 98,657.00 33,252.66 66.3

50-41-5064 STANDBY - SEWER .00 .00 2,000.00 2,000.00 .0

50-41-5065 OVERTIME SEWER 206.04 4,350.63 7,000.00 2,649.37 62.2

50-41-5075 ACCRUED VAC - COMP TIME .00 1,429.36 8,000.00 6,570.64 17.9

50-41-5082 CITY MANAGER WAGES 1,087.54 13,172.38 11,970.00 (                1,202.38) 110.0

50-41-5085 MAYOR & COUNCIL STIPEND 75.00 900.00 1,500.00 600.00 60.0

50-41-5152 PAYROLL EXP - SEWER 14,327.68 183,476.46 280,462.00 96,985.54 65.4

TOTAL PERSONNEL SERVICES 40,511.30 523,881.69 682,613.00 158,731.31 76.8

MATERIALS & SERVICES

50-45-6110 ELECTRICITY - SEWER 2,227.02 27,741.87 32,000.00 4,258.13 86.7

50-45-6455 EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT  .00 .00 1,000.00 1,000.00 .0

50-45-6520 BLDG MAINT - SEWER .00 175.46 3,500.00 3,324.54 5.0

50-45-6530 TELEPHONE & TELEMETRY .00 4,996.67 6,500.00 1,503.33 76.9

50-45-6534 PLANT CHEMICALS & SUP 3,221.07 58,051.23 45,000.00 (              13,051.23) 129.0

50-45-6551 ADMIN & BILLING .00 25,767.54 25,000.00 (                   767.54) 103.1

50-45-6570 INS - VEHICLE, LIAB, EQUIP, BL .00 39,100.71 40,000.00 899.29 97.8

50-45-6574 AUDIT - SEWER .00 9,438.12 11,000.00 1,561.88 85.8

50-45-6580 FUEL & OIL 1,285.24 7,647.05 15,000.00 7,352.95 51.0

50-45-6690 VEHICLE MAINT, SUP & REP 445.36 2,033.93 13,000.00 10,966.07 15.7

50-45-6740 I & I WORK 450.00 10,363.75 26,000.00 15,636.25 39.9

50-45-6745 REQUIRED TESTING .00 296.62 2,000.00 1,703.38 14.8

50-45-6750 SYSTEM MAINT & SUPPLY 3,620.73 70,739.19 65,000.00 (                5,739.19) 108.8

50-45-6831 DUES .00 347.60 700.00 352.40 49.7

50-45-6850 ATTORNEY .00 2,632.00 2,500.00 (                   132.00) 105.3

50-45-6851 ENGINEERING 1,053.00 3,045.00 25,200.00 22,155.00 12.1

50-45-6915 TRAVEL & TRAINING - STAFF .00 1,531.36 5,000.00 3,468.64 30.6

50-45-6945 METER READERS .00 12,987.70 6,400.00 (                6,587.70) 202.9

50-45-6951 ORDINANCE ENFORCEMENT .00 .00 500.00 500.00 .0

TOTAL MATERIALS & SERVICES 12,302.42 276,895.80 325,300.00 48,404.20 85.1

CAPITAL OUTLAY

50-47-7602 PW MOBILE EQUIP REPLACE PLAN (                   445.36) 39,850.79 40,000.00 149.21 99.6

TOTAL CAPITAL OUTLAY (                   445.36) 39,850.79 40,000.00 149.21 99.6

DRAFT



CITY OF ROCKAWAY BEACH

EXPENDITURES WITH COMPARISON TO BUDGET

FOR THE 12 MONTHS ENDING JUNE 30, 2024

SEWER OPERATING FUND

PERIOD ACTUAL YTD ACTUAL BUDGET UNEXPENDED PCNT

FOR ADMINISTRATION USE ONLY 100 % OF THE FISCAL YEAR HAS ELAPSED  07/09/2024     09:28AM       PAGE: 24

CONTINGENCY

50-48-7999 CONTINGENCY - SEWER .00 .00 30,000.00 30,000.00 .0

TOTAL CONTINGENCY .00 .00 30,000.00 30,000.00 .0

TRANSFERS

50-49-8027 TRNSFR TO - GF CH OPERATING 22,500.00 45,000.00 45,000.00 .00 100.0

50-49-8033 TRNSFR TO - SEWER MASTER PLAN 37,500.00 75,000.00 75,000.00 .00 100.0

TOTAL TRANSFERS 60,000.00 120,000.00 120,000.00 .00 100.0

TOTAL FUND EXPENDITURES 112,368.36 960,628.28 1,197,913.00 237,284.72 80.2

NET REVENUE OVER EXPENDITURES 39,381.44 (              24,111.09) (            313,663.00) (            289,551.91) (    7.7)

DRAFT



CITY OF ROCKAWAY BEACH

REVENUES WITH COMPARISON TO BUDGET

FOR THE 12 MONTHS ENDING JUNE 30, 2024

SEWER MASTER PLAN

PERIOD ACTUAL YTD ACTUAL BUDGET UNEXPENDED PCNT

FOR ADMINISTRATION USE ONLY 100 % OF THE FISCAL YEAR HAS ELAPSED  07/09/2024     09:28AM       PAGE: 25

OTHER INCOME

52-36-4120 INTEREST INCOME 3,009.08 30,280.91 9,000.00 (              21,280.91) 336.5

TOTAL OTHER INCOME 3,009.08 30,280.91 9,000.00 (              21,280.91) 336.5

TRANSFERS

52-39-4032 TRNSFR IN - FROM SEWER OPER 37,500.00 75,000.00 75,000.00 .00 100.0

TOTAL TRANSFERS 37,500.00 75,000.00 75,000.00 .00 100.0

TOTAL FUND REVENUE 40,509.08 105,280.91 84,000.00 (              21,280.91) 125.3

DRAFT



CITY OF ROCKAWAY BEACH

EXPENDITURES WITH COMPARISON TO BUDGET

FOR THE 12 MONTHS ENDING JUNE 30, 2024

SEWER MASTER PLAN

PERIOD ACTUAL YTD ACTUAL BUDGET UNEXPENDED PCNT

FOR ADMINISTRATION USE ONLY 100 % OF THE FISCAL YEAR HAS ELAPSED  07/09/2024     09:28AM       PAGE: 26

CAPITAL OUTLAY

52-47-7555 WWMP-IMPLIMENTATION PROJECTS .00 .00 60,000.00 60,000.00 .0

TOTAL CAPITAL OUTLAY .00 .00 60,000.00 60,000.00 .0

CONTINGENCY

52-48-7999 CONTINGENCY - SWR .00 .00 9,000.00 9,000.00 .0

TOTAL CONTINGENCY .00 .00 9,000.00 9,000.00 .0

TOTAL FUND EXPENDITURES .00 .00 69,000.00 69,000.00 .0

NET REVENUE OVER EXPENDITURES 40,509.08 105,280.91 15,000.00 (              90,280.91) 701.9

DRAFT



CITY OF ROCKAWAY BEACH

REVENUES WITH COMPARISON TO BUDGET

FOR THE 12 MONTHS ENDING JUNE 30, 2024

SEWER DEBT SERVICE

PERIOD ACTUAL YTD ACTUAL BUDGET UNEXPENDED PCNT

FOR ADMINISTRATION USE ONLY 100 % OF THE FISCAL YEAR HAS ELAPSED  07/09/2024     09:28AM       PAGE: 27

UTILITY BILLING

56-34-4650 SEWER DEBT REVENUE 42,563.20 256,541.20 245,000.00 (              11,541.20) 104.7

TOTAL UTILITY BILLING 42,563.20 256,541.20 245,000.00 (              11,541.20) 104.7

OTHER INCOME

56-36-4120 INTEREST INCOME 2,171.59 18,936.05 6,000.00 (              12,936.05) 315.6

TOTAL OTHER INCOME 2,171.59 18,936.05 6,000.00 (              12,936.05) 315.6

TOTAL FUND REVENUE 44,734.79 275,477.25 251,000.00 (              24,477.25) 109.8

DRAFT



CITY OF ROCKAWAY BEACH

EXPENDITURES WITH COMPARISON TO BUDGET

FOR THE 12 MONTHS ENDING JUNE 30, 2024

SEWER DEBT SERVICE

PERIOD ACTUAL YTD ACTUAL BUDGET UNEXPENDED PCNT

FOR ADMINISTRATION USE ONLY 100 % OF THE FISCAL YEAR HAS ELAPSED  07/09/2024     09:28AM       PAGE: 28

DEBT SERVICE

56-49-8510 WW OUTFALL LOAN PRINCIPLE .00 200,000.00 200,000.00 .00 100.0

56-49-8511 WW-OUTFALL LOAN INTEREST .00 9,150.00 9,375.00 225.00 97.6

TOTAL DEBT SERVICE .00 209,150.00 209,375.00 225.00 99.9

TOTAL FUND EXPENDITURES .00 209,150.00 209,375.00 225.00 99.9

NET REVENUE OVER EXPENDITURES 44,734.79 66,327.25 41,625.00 (              24,702.25) 159.3

DRAFT



CITY OF ROCKAWAY BEACH

REVENUES WITH COMPARISON TO BUDGET

FOR THE 12 MONTHS ENDING JUNE 30, 2024

SEWER SDC

PERIOD ACTUAL YTD ACTUAL BUDGET UNEXPENDED PCNT

FOR ADMINISTRATION USE ONLY 100 % OF THE FISCAL YEAR HAS ELAPSED  07/09/2024     09:28AM       PAGE: 29

OTHER INCOME

59-36-4120 INTEREST INCOME .00 2,607.92 3,200.00 592.08 81.5

TOTAL OTHER INCOME .00 2,607.92 3,200.00 592.08 81.5

FEES

59-38-4935 REIMB FEES - SEWER SDC .00 14,780.00 25,000.00 10,220.00 59.1

59-38-4940 IMP FEES - SEWER SDC .00 26,450.00 65,000.00 38,550.00 40.7

TOTAL FEES .00 41,230.00 90,000.00 48,770.00 45.8

TOTAL FUND REVENUE .00 43,837.92 93,200.00 49,362.08 47.0

DRAFT



CITY OF ROCKAWAY BEACH

EXPENDITURES WITH COMPARISON TO BUDGET

FOR THE 12 MONTHS ENDING JUNE 30, 2024

SEWER SDC

PERIOD ACTUAL YTD ACTUAL BUDGET UNEXPENDED PCNT

FOR ADMINISTRATION USE ONLY 100 % OF THE FISCAL YEAR HAS ELAPSED  07/09/2024     09:28AM       PAGE: 30

CAPITAL OUTLAY

59-47-7880 CONTR MAT - IMPROVE .00 .00 100,000.00 100,000.00 .0

59-47-7885 CONTR MAT - REIMBURSE .00 53,820.46 100,000.00 46,179.54 53.8

TOTAL CAPITAL OUTLAY .00 53,820.46 200,000.00 146,179.54 26.9

TOTAL FUND EXPENDITURES .00 53,820.46 200,000.00 146,179.54 26.9

NET REVENUE OVER EXPENDITURES .00 (                9,982.54) (            106,800.00) (              96,817.46) (    9.4)

DRAFT



CITY OF ROCKAWAY BEACH

REVENUES WITH COMPARISON TO BUDGET

FOR THE 12 MONTHS ENDING JUNE 30, 2024

TRANSIENT ROOM TAX

PERIOD ACTUAL YTD ACTUAL BUDGET UNEXPENDED PCNT

FOR ADMINISTRATION USE ONLY 100 % OF THE FISCAL YEAR HAS ELAPSED  07/09/2024     09:28AM       PAGE: 31

ROOM TAX REVENUES

80-31-4710 TRT REVENUE 5% 154,006.84 1,270,410.89 1,200,000.00 (              70,410.89) 105.9

80-31-4711 TRT REVENUE 2% - ADV 61,602.73 508,164.26 480,000.00 (              28,164.26) 105.9

80-31-4712 TRT REVENUE 2% - CTY 61,602.73 508,164.26 480,000.00 (              28,164.26) 105.9

80-31-4713 TRT REVENUE 1% - CTY 30,801.37 254,082.15 240,000.00 (              14,082.15) 105.9

TOTAL ROOM TAX REVENUES 308,013.67 2,540,821.56 2,400,000.00 (            140,821.56) 105.9

OTHER INCOME

80-36-4120 INTEREST INCOME - TRT 2,196.31 19,151.61 7,500.00 (              11,651.61) 255.4

TOTAL OTHER INCOME 2,196.31 19,151.61 7,500.00 (              11,651.61) 255.4

TOTAL FUND REVENUE 310,209.98 2,559,973.17 2,407,500.00 (            152,473.17) 106.3

DRAFT



CITY OF ROCKAWAY BEACH

EXPENDITURES WITH COMPARISON TO BUDGET

FOR THE 12 MONTHS ENDING JUNE 30, 2024

TRANSIENT ROOM TAX

PERIOD ACTUAL YTD ACTUAL BUDGET UNEXPENDED PCNT

FOR ADMINISTRATION USE ONLY 100 % OF THE FISCAL YEAR HAS ELAPSED  07/09/2024     09:28AM       PAGE: 32

MATERIALS & SERVICES

80-45-6533 ADVERTISING - MEDIA AGT 18,479.76 171,205.74 197,211.00 26,005.26 86.8

80-45-6534 ADVERTISING - WEBSITE CTY .00 2,357.10 75,000.00 72,642.90 3.1

80-45-6535 ADVERTISING/TOURISM AGT .00 3,646.50 55,000.00 51,353.50 6.6

80-45-6536 ROCKAWAY LIONS EVENTS .00 1,218.00 2,000.00 782.00 60.9

80-45-6537 FIREWORKS .00 73,258.00 75,000.00 1,742.00 97.7

80-45-6538 TOURISM PROMO AND FACILITIES 3,313.92 16,838.35 85,000.00 68,161.65 19.8

80-45-6634 ADVERTISING - OTHER CTY .00 1,135.00 95,000.00 93,865.00 1.2

TOTAL MATERIALS & SERVICES 21,793.68 269,658.69 584,211.00 314,552.31 46.2

CONTINGENCY

80-46-6999 OPERATING CONTINGENCY - TRT .00 .00 10,000.00 10,000.00 .0

TOTAL CONTINGENCY .00 .00 10,000.00 10,000.00 .0

TRANSFERS

80-49-8024 TO - GF POLICE 172,461.00 344,921.00 344,921.00 .00 100.0

80-49-8025 TO - GENERAL FUND 62,200.00 124,405.00 124,405.00 .00 100.0

80-49-8026 TO - FIRE TRK RES 185,804.00 371,607.00 371,607.00 .00 100.0

80-49-8036 TO -  P &  E RESERVE 595,241.00 1,190,481.00 1,190,481.00 .00 100.0

80-49-8041 TO - ROADS & STREETS 185,466.00 370,926.00 370,926.00 .00 100.0

80-49-8044 TO - GF CITY BEAUTIF 2,500.00 5,000.00 5,000.00 .00 100.0

80-49-8046 TO - GF FIRE 210,913.00 421,825.00 421,825.00 .00 100.0

TOTAL TRANSFERS 1,414,585.00 2,829,165.00 2,829,165.00 .00 100.0

TOTAL FUND EXPENDITURES 1,436,378.68 3,098,823.69 3,423,376.00 324,552.31 90.5

NET REVENUE OVER EXPENDITURES (         1,126,168.70) (            538,850.52) (         1,015,876.00) (            477,025.48) (  53.0)DRAFT





































































































































June 14, 2024

Dear Rockaway Beach City Council,

Thank you very much for providing a $2,000 Community Grant to Rockaway Beach Volunteers
(RBV) in its 2023 grant funding cycle. As anticipated, those funds were used by RBV to
purchase equipment for use by its volunteers in community projects, t-shirts and sweatshirts for
the volunteers which identify them as Rockaway Beach Volunteers, and a sandwich board sign
with our name and logo which will help volunteers and others locate us during community
events. Fortunately we were not required to use grant funds for other printing costs, as printing
work was donated by other sources.

Included with this letter is a spreadsheet of the expenditures made using the grant funds, as
well as an itemization of our current inventory of assets purchased. Receipts for all
expenditures are also enclosed.

This year you may have seen our volunteers wearing beautiful blue grant purchased shirts with
our bright logo at the Annual Easter Egg Hunt, at the Earth Day Solve Clean Up, landscaping
the front of the Post Office, at the Rockaway Writers Rendezvous, and working alongside
Neah-Kah-Nie Middle School Students throughout our community on their “Day of Service”. We
can look forward to seeing them again soon hanging summer holiday bunting, helping with the
Kite Festival, wrangling traffic and pedestrians at the 4th of July Parade, selling hot dogs at the
Wiener Dog Races, and at many other community events in the months to follow.

We are grateful to the City of Rockaway Beach’s amazing Public Works Department personel
who are always willing to help our volunteers and have made space available in the City's
Phyllis Baker Park storage facility for our equipment when it is not in use.

We sincerely appreciate the opportunity the grant provided to be able to properly equip and to
recognize and thank our volunteers by providing the shirts and sweatshirts.

Robin Swaih-and Sandy Johnson
Rockaway Beach Volunteers Co-Coordinators



SOURCE DATE DEPOSITS

CITY OF ROCKAVWXY BEACH 10/11/23 $
PSI 3/11/24
DOLLAR GENERAL 4/5/24
Dollar General 4/24/24
Amazon 4/22/24
Fred Meyer 5/14/24
Dollar General 5/16/24
Amazon 6/13/24

Assets:
10 rates (donated)
30 pairs of gardening gloves*
* 28 pairs survived middle school dayO
22 grabbers (6 long 16 medium)
* 20grat ers after middle school day
5 kneellng pads
6hand rakes
2 pruners
6 weeders
3 trowels
1sandwich board (RBV logo)
4 sharpiesmarkers
collapsable wagon
20 paintbrushes

EXPENSES BALANCE Items Purchased

000.00 $2,000.00
$1,514.56 $485.44 Shirts/sweatshirts

$49.00 $436.44 work gloves
$13.00 $423.44 handtools

$227.86 $195.58.22 grabbers
$16.50 $179.08 pruners/troweis
$5.00 $174.08 sharpies

181.93 -7.85* wagon, weeders, p. brushes
*neg. balancedonated

. .-



INVOICE

Pinpoint Stitches and Ink LLC. dillon@psioregon.com

6500 Williams Ave (503) 842-5378

Bay City, OR 97107

Rockaway Beach Volunteers

Bill to
Sandy Johnson
Rockaway Beach Volunteers

Ship to
Sandy Johnson
Rockaway Beach Volunteers

Invoice details
Invoice no.: 8687
Terms: Due on receipt
Invoice date: 03/07/2024
Due date: 03/07/2024

# Date Product or service SKU Qty Rate Amount

1. Sign

24"x36“ double sided a-frame, with 2-inserts

1 $205.00 $205.00

2. Sign Labor

Labor Cost for Manufacturing

1 $70.00 $70.00

3. Apparel
PC455 fan favorite short sleeve tee, True RoyalHeather

29 $6.10 $176.90

4. Apparel

PC455 fan favorite short sleeve tee, True Royal Heather 2XL

5 $7.60 $38.00

5. Apparel
PC78H pullover hooded sweatshirt. True Royal

23 $18.29 $420.67

6. Apparel

PC78H pullover hooded sweatshrt. True Royal 2XL

2 $19.79 $39.58

7. Apparel
PC78H pullover hooded sweatshirt. True Royal 3XL

2 $20.29 $40.58

8. Apparel
DT6106 fleece quarter zip sweatshirt, Deep Royal

8 $20.61 $164.88

9. Apparel
DT6106 fleece quarter zip sweatshirt, Deep Royal 2XL

2 $22.11 $44.22



GENERAL STORE #18455
OR

5
@ 1

2 @ 1

1
$13

02

332192291 404921 122

****************** ********* at ** to *A
enter

* •

*HERE
SATURDAY

$5OFF-25
$25

$25 or DG

cards;
Rug

alcohol.

DOLLAR GENERAL
OR

JERSEY 796326024157 12.00
@

@ .
12

TOTAL

2024-04-02 01

31 23111

**************************************** *** A Card*
* Drawings, be enter
* Survey *

<»«*»»*♦**«»*»*««»*****»«»»*»**»«**»***» *
HERE

SATURDAY
ValM

$5 your purchase

or other

per
cards;



<- Q. invoice for m...

Delivered
Delivery Estimate
Monday, April 22, 2024
by 8pm

4 YAUNGEL $13.99
Folding
Grabber
with
Magnetic
Tip,
Garbage
Grabber,
108cm
Qty: 6
Sold By: Greencao

2024 $17.99
Upgraded
2-Pack
Grabber
Toot, 32"
Long
Reacher
Grabber
Qty; 8
Sold By: Dumsamker-
Direct

Track shipment

Buy it again >

Payment information

Payment method
Visa ending

Shipping address

Robin Swain

United States

Order Summary

Items: $227.86
Shipping &
Handling:

$0.00

Total Before
Tax:

$227.86

Estimated Tax
Collected:

$0.00

Order Total $227.86

Pick up where you left
off



DOLLAR STORE
OR

al

YOUR

WEEDER

8003501

100.00

<25
11:15AM

SHARPIE
SHARPIE 2.00
TOTAL.
CASH
2024-05-16 02 7987

UIIIIIHIIIHIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIM^
1 491 1 3211 41

AT

your of
®25

*
* survey *For a **WIN A

Drawings, 18+ enter *Code *

CUT
SATURDAY MAY18th

more
$5

off store
phone, and prepaid financial cards;

wireless



amazon.com
Details for Order #111-2251958-7880234

Print this page for vour records,

Order Placed: June 13, 2024
Amazon.com order number: 111-2251958-7880234
Order Total: $181.93

Not Yet Shipped

Items Ordered Price
2 of: Pro Grade - Paint Brushes -10 Pack Variety Angle Paint Brushes $21.99
Sold by: Pro-Grade Supplies (seller profile)

Supplied by: Other

Condition: New
4 of: SZHLUX SZ-CCQ-HL Weeder Premium Weed Puller, Gardening Hand Tool with Ergonomic Handle, Green $6.99
Sold by: AnMzon.com Services, Inc
Supplied by: Other

Condition: New

1of: TIMBER RIDGE Collapsible Folding Wagon Cart with Tailgate, 300lbs Heavy Duty Foldable Utility Wagon with Adjustable $109.99
Handle, 200L Capacity Portable Cart for Outdoor Camping Sports Shopping, Blue
Sold by: TIMBER RIDGE OUTDOORS (seller profile)

Supplied by: Other

Condition: New

Shipping Address:
Calvin Johnson

ROCKAWAY BEACH, OR 97136-9458
United States

Shipping Speed:
Delivery in fewer trips to your address

Payment Method:
Visa ending in

Billing address

Payment information
Item(s) Subtotal: $181.93

Shipping & Handling: $0.00

Total before tax: $181.93
Estimated tax to be collected: $0.00

Grand Total: $181.93

To view the status of your order, return to Order Summary.

Conditions of Use | Privacy Notice © 1996-2024, Amazon.com, Inc. or its affiliates

Back to top

amazon © Lngli-Ji UI United SIMM Help

https://www.amazon.com/gp/cs5/summ«ry/print.html7bfdtir!£>s111'22B19fiR-7S#07Ji4$f^rsppMI.yffi:i>iy»;dfrJii.Jfh|iilf*e A,WW
Fg^ 1 ?















 

 

5995 Long Prairie Rd. Tillamook, OR  97141                                                          503-842-2561                                                               Tillamooksheriff.com 

TILLAMOOK COUNTY SHERIFF’S OFFICE 
CONSERVATORS OF THE PEACE  

Sheriff Joshua Brown  

Rockaway Beach Patrol  
Month of June 2024  

The month of June saw the end of the school year and graduation for the seniors of Neahkahnie High 

School. With Oregon schools completing the 2023-2024 school year, there has been a noticeable increase in 

families in town throughout the last few weeks of the month.  

In early June, Deputy Ahlers attended training presented by Oregon CALM. The acronym C.A.L.M. 

stands for Counseling on Access to Lethal Means and is aimed at providing attendees with knowledge and 

skills to assist persons and family members of persons considering suicide. The focus of the training is to 

create time and distance between a person with suicide ideation and the means to attempt suicide. The 

additional time created can give someone the opportunity to see other options besides ending their life. While 

not an easy topic to discuss, suicide impacts far too many Oregonians every year. According to the Oregon 

Health Authority, there were 899 deaths by suicide in Oregon in 2021. If you or someone you know is 

considering suicide you can call or text 988 to reach the national suicide prevention line. 

 Notable calls for service this month include the theft of a debit card from a local store. That card was 

then used at another location with high quality surveillance cameras. We are still waiting for some more 

information but expect to be able to make an arrest at the conclusion of the investigation. 

 A car was broken into on the east end of town. There are no suspects in that case. Please remove 

valuables from your vehicles to not give criminals a reason to break into your car. 

 A person reported unauthorized charges on their debit card. This case is still open. 

A caller reported telephonic harassment at their place of employment. The suspect was contacted, this 

case is still open as well. 

Other call numbers are noted in the statistics report provided. 

 

Undersheriff Matt Kelly  

    

 

 

 



Incident Address City Incident Date And Time Incident Type Incident Unit ID
Rockaway Beach 06/01/2024 14:26:57 Assist 215
Rockaway Beach 06/01/2024 16:01:06 Traffic 215
Rockaway Beach 06/01/2024 17:46:42 Suicidal 217
Rockaway Beach 06/01/2024 17:46:42 Suicidal 220
Rockaway Beach 06/01/2024 17:46:42 Suicidal 229
Rockaway Beach 06/01/2024 17:46:42 Suicidal 215
Rockaway Beach 06/01/2024 17:57:12 Welfare check 215
Rockaway Beach 06/01/2024 18:45:03 Follow Up 215
Rockaway Beach 06/01/2024 19:14:04 Follow Up 215
Rockaway Beach 06/02/2024 13:51:08 Assist 210
Rockaway Beach 06/03/2024 09:43:19 Follow Up 210
Rockaway Beach 06/03/2024 10:30:38 Trespass 210
Rockaway Beach 06/03/2024 11:13:59 Welfare check 210
Rockaway Beach 06/04/2024 08:41:12 Follow Up 214
Rockaway Beach 06/04/2024 09:04:41 Hit & Run 214
Rockaway Beach 06/04/2024 16:24:37 Fraud 211
Rockaway Beach 06/04/2024 20:04:35 Civil Service 211
Rockaway Beach 06/04/2024 22:43:09 Civil 211
Rockaway Beach 06/05/2024 07:39:27 Civil 214
Rockaway Beach 06/05/2024 11:41:53 Harassment 214
Rockaway Beach 06/05/2024 12:49:22 Follow Up 214
Rockaway Beach 06/05/2024 15:02:30 Burglary 214
Rockaway Beach 06/05/2024 15:54:04 Follow Up 214
Rockaway Beach 06/06/2024 12:09:24 Ordinance Violation 215
Rockaway Beach 06/06/2024 12:59:14 Alarm 215
Rockaway Beach 06/06/2024 12:59:14 Alarm 219
Rockaway Beach 06/06/2024 14:15:06 Contact 215
Rockaway Beach 06/06/2024 15:21:10 Civil Service 219
Rockaway Beach 06/06/2024 17:11:38 Assist 215
Rockaway Beach 06/07/2024 10:42:07 MVA 216
Rockaway Beach 06/07/2024 10:42:07 MVA 219
Rockaway Beach 06/07/2024 14:46:16 Contact 215
Rockaway Beach 06/07/2024 14:50:07 Welfare check 215
Rockaway Beach 06/07/2024 18:16:55 Assist 215
Rockaway Beach 06/07/2024 19:17:09 Animal 215
Rockaway Beach 06/08/2024 11:28:14 Vehicle 215
Rockaway Beach 06/08/2024 14:08:03 Unknown 215
Rockaway Beach 06/08/2024 15:23:09 Follow Up 215
Rockaway Beach 06/08/2024 17:26:38 Follow Up 215
Rockaway Beach 06/08/2024 17:57:33 Contact 215
Rockaway Beach 06/09/2024 11:00:01 Theft 210
Rockaway Beach 06/09/2024 11:16:54 Follow Up 210
Rockaway Beach 06/09/2024 11:52:07 Follow Up 210



Rockaway Beach 06/09/2024 12:13:09 Follow Up 210
Rockaway Beach 06/09/2024 16:43:43 Welfare check 210
Rockaway Beach 06/10/2024 01:59:13 Suspicious 211
Rockaway Beach 06/10/2024 01:59:13 Suspicious 230
Rockaway Beach 06/10/2024 07:19:24 Burglary 214
Rockaway Beach 06/10/2024 07:29:17 Theft 210
Rockaway Beach 06/10/2024 10:31:10 Property 210
Rockaway Beach 06/10/2024 10:38:36 Follow Up 210
Rockaway Beach 06/10/2024 14:14:33 Follow Up 210
Rockaway Beach 06/10/2024 19:20:42 Vehicle 211
Rockaway Beach 06/11/2024 08:40:01 Vehicle 210
Rockaway Beach 06/11/2024 10:30:30 Follow Up 210
Rockaway Beach 06/11/2024 13:55:14 Property 210
Rockaway Beach 06/11/2024 15:09:27 Crim Misch 210
Rockaway Beach 06/11/2024 15:39:49 7 214
Rockaway Beach 06/11/2024 16:23:33 Welfare check 210
Rockaway Beach 06/11/2024 19:41:29 Ordinance Violation 211
Rockaway Beach 06/12/2024 11:49:02 UEMV 215
Rockaway Beach 06/12/2024 12:27:03 Water Rescue 215
Rockaway Beach 06/12/2024 12:35:26 Suspicious 210
Rockaway Beach 06/12/2024 12:35:26 Suspicious 215
Rockaway Beach 06/12/2024 14:33:07 Suspicious 219
Rockaway Beach 06/12/2024 16:12:12 Disturbance 216
Rockaway Beach 06/12/2024 16:12:12 Disturbance 220
Rockaway Beach 06/12/2024 16:12:12 Disturbance 215
Rockaway Beach 06/13/2024 09:40:11 Civil 215
Rockaway Beach 06/13/2024 23:16:25 Traffic Stop 225
Rockaway Beach 06/13/2024 23:32:39 Traffic Stop 225
Rockaway Beach 06/13/2024 23:48:56 Contact 225
Rockaway Beach 06/14/2024 22:14:04 Unwanted 225
Rockaway Beach 06/14/2024 23:22:24 Disturbance 226
Rockaway Beach 06/14/2024 23:22:24 Disturbance 229
Rockaway Beach 06/15/2024 21:51:39 Traffic Stop 225
Rockaway Beach 06/15/2024 22:02:43 Traffic Stop 225
Rockaway Beach 06/15/2024 22:20:52 Traffic Stop 225
Rockaway Beach 06/15/2024 22:33:26 Traffic Stop 225
Rockaway Beach 06/16/2024 13:55:29 Welfare check 214
Rockaway Beach 06/16/2024 20:33:00 Fraud 211
Rockaway Beach 06/17/2024 00:13:32 Uncon/Not Breathing 211
Rockaway Beach 06/17/2024 00:13:32 Uncon/Not Breathing 225
Rockaway Beach 06/17/2024 02:23:05 Noise 211
Rockaway Beach 06/17/2024 09:16:59 Crim Misch 214
Rockaway Beach 06/17/2024 15:05:48 Follow Up 210
Rockaway Beach 06/17/2024 15:15:20 Assist 210



Rockaway Beach 06/17/2024 20:18:09 Traffic Stop 211
Rockaway Beach 06/17/2024 20:18:09 Traffic Stop 225
Rockaway Beach 06/17/2024 20:28:00 Traffic Stop 211
Rockaway Beach 06/17/2024 20:53:07 Traffic Stop 211
Rockaway Beach 06/17/2024 20:53:07 Traffic Stop 225
Rockaway Beach 06/17/2024 23:40:35 Warrant 211
Rockaway Beach 06/17/2024 23:40:35 Warrant 225
Rockaway Beach 06/18/2024 13:13:20 Follow Up 210
Rockaway Beach 06/18/2024 14:50:19 Harassment 210
Rockaway Beach 06/19/2024 11:16:00 Civil 207
Rockaway Beach 06/19/2024 11:16:00 Civil 215
Rockaway Beach 06/19/2024 12:45:54 Civil 215
Rockaway Beach 06/20/2024 10:05:51 Trespass 215
Rockaway Beach 06/20/2024 11:55:08 Follow Up 227
Rockaway Beach 06/20/2024 12:24:02 Traffic Stop 223
Rockaway Beach 06/20/2024 12:24:02 Traffic Stop 215
Rockaway Beach 06/20/2024 12:46:13 MVA/Non-injury 215
Rockaway Beach 06/20/2024 15:38:43 Alarm 215
Rockaway Beach 06/20/2024 15:58:40 Contact 215
Rockaway Beach 06/20/2024 18:58:44 MVA 216
Rockaway Beach 06/20/2024 18:58:44 MVA 712
Rockaway Beach 06/20/2024 18:58:44 MVA 215
Rockaway Beach 06/20/2024 20:21:39 Theft 215
Rockaway Beach 06/21/2024 12:13:15 Assist 216
Rockaway Beach 06/21/2024 12:58:26 Follow Up 216
Rockaway Beach 06/21/2024 17:09:28 Theft 215
Rockaway Beach 06/23/2024 11:42:19 Man Down 210
Rockaway Beach 06/23/2024 15:52:25 Assist 210
Rockaway Beach 06/24/2024 10:13:16 Assist 210
Rockaway Beach 06/24/2024 11:31:13 Death 210
Rockaway Beach 06/24/2024 12:06:44 Suspicious 214
Rockaway Beach 06/24/2024 13:29:51 Follow Up 210
Rockaway Beach 06/25/2024 09:00:56 Alarm 210
Rockaway Beach 06/25/2024 18:49:28 Vehicle 211
Rockaway Beach 06/25/2024 19:50:44 Follow Up 211
Rockaway Beach 06/26/2024 00:14:32 BUSINESS CHECK 225
Rockaway Beach 06/26/2024 00:21:46 BUSINESS CHECK 225
Rockaway Beach 06/26/2024 00:22:08 BUSINESS CHECK 225
Rockaway Beach 06/26/2024 00:22:26 BUSINESS CHECK 225
Rockaway Beach 06/26/2024 11:29:00 Vehicle 210
Rockaway Beach 06/26/2024 13:15:08 Contact 210
Rockaway Beach 06/26/2024 15:04:41 Crim Misch 210
Rockaway Beach 06/26/2024 17:05:33 Traffic Stop 220
Rockaway Beach 06/27/2024 09:03:23 Follow Up 220



Rockaway Beach 06/27/2024 12:45:57 Civil 220
Rockaway Beach 06/27/2024 12:47:00 Trespass 220
Rockaway Beach 06/27/2024 14:57:44 Assist 220
Rockaway Beach 06/28/2024 19:53:33 Death 215
Rockaway Beach 06/28/2024 21:32:32 Assist 215
Rockaway Beach 06/29/2024 12:19:07 Ordinance Violation 215
Rockaway Beach 06/29/2024 22:41:57 Noise 217
Rockaway Beach 06/30/2024 09:42:40 Vehicle 210
Rockaway Beach 06/30/2024 10:39:48 Water Rescue 210
Rockaway Beach 06/30/2024 10:39:48 Water Rescue 712
Rockaway Beach 06/30/2024 12:59:01 Civil Service 210
Rockaway Beach 06/30/2024 14:23:45 Follow Up 210
Rockaway Beach 06/30/2024 15:24:29 Civil Service 210
Rockaway Beach 06/30/2024 16:47:31 Follow Up 210
Rockaway Beach 06/30/2024 18:58:28 Suicidal 220
Rockaway Beach 06/30/2024 19:56:18 Traffic Stop 220
Rockaway Beach 06/30/2024 21:30:44 Court Violation 220
Rockaway Beach 06/30/2024 23:36:26 Traffic Stop 220



 City of Rockaway Beach, Oregon 
276 S. Highway 101, PO Box 5 

Rockaway Beach, OR 97136 
(503) 374-1752  FAX (503)374-0601 

 

 
 
7/9/24 

 

Dear Mayor, City Council, and City Manager  

 

Water Treatment  

Recent rainfall, totaling 6.6 inches in May and 4.5 inches in June, has increased water flows for this time 

of year. In contrast, 2023 was among the driest on record, prompting the city to implement the first 

stage of water curtailment.  Given the current conditions and the increased creek flows, I do not 

anticipate the need for water curtailment this year.  

Water Distribution  

The booster station at Pacific View Estates experienced a critical pressure tank failure, compromising 

our ability to maintain consistent water pressure without continuously running the pumps. The issue 

was not immediately apparent, emerging only after thorough troubleshooting by our public works team. 

We quickly ordered a replacement tank to restore operations and ensure reliable water pressure to the 

community. The replacement tank is 4 weeks out. Water Leak on Nehalem St. the location of the leak 

was on a high-pressure side of our system Rob Bierly and Don Kiser fixed. 6/6/24. 

Wastewater Treatment: 

Recently, our plant operators undertook the challenging task of removing an old, rusted metal hopper, 

which is used to collect waste materials that float in the wastewater flow. This task is reminiscent of 

something you'd see on "Dirty Jobs" with Mike Rowe. After repairs are made our plant operators will 

reinstall.  

Wastewater Collections: 

Last year we pulled pump # 1 at the White Dove sewer pump station. According to our records this 

pump had been in service since it was built back around 1991 showing 33 years of outstanding service. 

With that said it’s way too long to go without maintenance. This year public works has pulled pump #2 

for repairs. With the extended runtime in between maintenance intervals, we are crossing our fingers 

that this pump is repairable. The cost to replace these pumps would be very expensive and would likely 

require engineering services.   

Roads: 

A big thanks to the City of Tillamook for allowing us to use their digital signs displayed at both ends of 

town. The road sealing on Anchor St. looks fantastic, and we were also able to include the fire 

department’s parking lot. On June 7th, while driving south on Hwy 101 towards Washington St. our 

driver was rearended by another driver who wasn’t paying attention. Fortunately, our driver was 

unharmed, though we still had him checked out as a precaution. The other driver also appeared to be 

okay. However, out work truck did not fare as well and was ultimately declared totaled after extensive 



 City of Rockaway Beach, Oregon 
276 S. Highway 101, PO Box 5 

Rockaway Beach, OR 97136 
(503) 374-1752  FAX (503)374-0601 

 

 
 
discussions with the insurance company. Although we did not plan to replace any vehicles this year, 

thanks to our excellent management and preparedness, we are ready to make the necessary 

adjustments and acquire a new truck.   

Parks: 

Anchor St. Park has been a hit, every weekend my kids have asked if we can go to Rockaway and play. 

Public works Posted for seasonal help in June. We received multiple applications and have narrowed it 

down to one candidate. I believe he will be able to step right in and give help to our crew. The Wayside 

improvement project is moving forward. We had our pre bid meeting July 10th the next meeting will be 

the bid opening on July 24th.  That is all I have.  

 

 

 Dan W. Emerson, Superintendent  

City of Rockaway Beach Public Works   

P: 503.374.0586 / C: 503.457.6094   

PublicWorks@corb.us 

 

 

mailto:PublicWorks@corb.us


City of Rockaway Beach, Oregon
276 S. Highway 101, PO Box 5

Rockaway Beach, OR 97136
503.374.1752

STAFF REPORT

Date: July 10, 2024
To: City Council
From: Luke Shepard, City Manager
Subject: RE: Budget Resolution 2024-37 Scrivener's Error

Please see the attached memorandum from Finance Director Marni Johnston. In it, she describes
two clerical errors (sometimes called scrivener's errors) discovered in resolution 2024-37.
Typographical or scrivener's errors sometime occur and are correctable. Needed corrections to the
errors in budget resolution 2034-37 have already been made, and the assessor's office has been
notified. No action by the City Council is required. This report is intended only to inform.

The Department of Revenue's Local Budgeting Manual recommends that when a correctable error
occurs, that the budget officer inform the governing body in writing, and that the budget officer
correct the record at the governing body's next regularly scheduled meeting. This staff report and
attached memo fulfils the Local Budget Manual's recommendation for written notification to the
governing body, and the City Manager's verbal report to the City Council on July 17th will satisfy the
manual's second recommendation.

As always, please feel free to contact me for additional information.

Respectfully,

Luke Shepard
City Manager

RE: Budget Resolution 2024-37 Scrivener's Error



 

City of Rockway Beach, Oregon 
276 S. Highway 101, PO Box 5 

Rockaway Beach, OR 97136 
(503) 374-1752 
www.corb.us  

 

 

Finance Department Memorandum  Page 1 of 1  

MEMORANDUM 
 
TO:  Luke Shepard, City Manager 
FROM:  Marni Johnston, Finance Director 
DATE:  June 25, 2024 
 
RE:   Budget Resolution 2024-37 Scrivener’s Error 
 
It has come to my attention that the budget resolution contained scrivener’s/typographic errors.  
 
The tax rate in Resolution No. 2024-37 originally identified the tax rate at $ 0.998/$1,000 in error. 
Resolution No. 2024-37 has been corrected to reflect the accurate tax rate of $0.988/$1,000. This is 
something that the City will want to make transparent to City Council at the July 2024 Council meeting. 
 
In correcting this error, I also discovered that a rounding difference exists. There is a $1.00 variance 
between the LB-1 and summary budget sheets when compared to Resolution No. 2024-37. 
 
Upon this discovery I telephoned the City’s auditing firm Koontz, Blasquez & Associates Inc., and had a 
conversation with the City’s lead auditor Peter Gelser. 
 
Mr. Gelser confirmed that from an audit perspective, informing City Council of the corrected resolution 
and $1 variance at the July meeting would be sufficient means of correcting this situation. He added that 
he sees similar rounding issues and typographic errors often, and that he has no concerns that Rockaway 
Beach is meeting Oregon’s minimum standards. 
 
I apologize for the inconvenience that this has caused. 
 
Please let me know if you have any questions. 
 
 

http://www.corb.us/


 

City of Rockway Beach, Oregon 
276 S. Highway 101, PO Box 5 

Rockaway Beach, OR 97136 
(503) 374-1752 
www.corb.us  

 

 

Planning Department Monthly Report  Page 1 of 1  

MEMORANDUM 
 
TO:  Rockaway Beach City Council and Luke Shepard, City Manager 
FROM:  Mary Johnson, City Planner 
DATE:  July 9, 2024 
 
RE:   Planning Department Monthly Report 
 
The Rockaway Beach Planning Commission met on Thursday, June 20th for their regular meeting.  The 
Commissioners held a public hearing to consider Conditional Use application #24-01 to allow the owners 
of 137 South Beacon Street to construct a single-family dwelling in the C-1 commercial zone.  The Agent 
for the Applicant requested the record be left open for an additional seven days to submit additional 
evidence in support of the application.  The Planning Commission closed the public hearing and left the 
record open for an additional seven days to receive testimony.   

The Planning Commission held a second public hearing to consider Planned Unit Development 
application #24-01 to amend Phase 2 of the approved 2008 Nedonna Wave Planned Unit Development.  
The public hearing was opened, staff presented their report, public testimony was received, and the Agent 
for the Applicant provided comments on the application.  The public and the Agent for the Applicant 
requested the record be left open for an additional seven days to receive testimony.  The Planning 
Commission left the record open and continued the public hearing until June 27th. 

On Thursday, June 27th, the Planning Commission held a Special Meeting.  The Commissioners 
considered the additional testimony they received on Conditional Use application #24-01 and deliberated 
on the application.  The Planning Commissioners voted 5-2 in favor of the application.  The Planning 
Commissioners approved the conditional use request by majority vote.   

The Planning Commissioners continued the public hearing on Planned Unit Development application #24-
01.  Additional public testimony was received, the Agent for the Applicant provided comments in response 
to the public testimony, and the Planning Commissioners asked questions of staff and the Agent for the 
Applicant.  The Planning Commissioners noted that a substantial amount of written testimony was 
received just prior to the continued hearing and that they had not had a chance to review all of the 
testimony.  The Agent for the Applicant requested the Planning Commissioners allow an additional seven 
days to provide final comments in response to the written testimony received prior to the hearing.  The 
Planning Commissioners closed the public hearing, provided the Agent for the Applicant an additional 
seven days to provide final written comments, and determined that the matter would be continued to their 
regularly scheduled meeting in July. 

Upcoming work for the Planning Commission: 

• The continued hearing on Planned Unit Development application #24-01 will be held in July. 
• Election of Planning Commission President and Vice President will take place at the July meeting. 

http://www.corb.us/


 

Rockaway Beach City Council   Page 1 of 5 
Workshop Minutes – May 8, 2024 
 

City of Rockaway Beach 
City Council Workshop Minutes     
 
Date:   Wednesday, May 8, 2024  
Time:   4:30 P.M. – 5:40 P.M. 
Location:  Rockaway Beach City Hall, 276 HWY 101 – 2nd Floor Conference Room  

 
 

1. CALL TO ORDER 
Mayor McNeilly called the meeting to order at 4:30 p.m. 
 

2. ROLL CALL   
Start time: 04:30 PM  
 
Mayor - Charles McNeilly: Present 
Position #3 - Kristine Hayes: Present 
Position #4 - Alesia Franken: Present 
Position #1 - Mary McGinnis: Present 
Position #5 - Penelope Cheek: Present 
Position #2 - Tom Martine: Present 
 
Staff Present: Luke Shepard, City Manager; and Melissa Thompson, City Recorder 
 

 
3. COUNCIL BRIEFING/DISCUSSION 

 
McNeilly announced an update to his plans for the monthly Coffee with Manager and Mayor 
meetings. He explained that he began the monthly Coffee with Manager and Mayor meetings 
because he believed that there was not enough opportunity for community members to engage 
with the city government in an informal way and indirectly provide input to the City Council. 
McNeilly noted that the City Councilors already had access to himself and the City Manager and 
there was no need for an additional opportunity to express their ideas and concerns to them. 
McNeilly indicated that therefore going forward the Coffee with Manager and Mayor would be 
off limits to City Councilors. McGinnis and Cheek expressed their understanding. Hayes 
expressed confusion and concern about the meeting notes. McNeilly indicated that he was 
comfortable with his meeting notes, noting that they were reviewed by Shepard. 

 
 

a. Review of Granicus Short-Term Rental (STR) Software 
Start time: 4:33:15 PM 
 
Shepard explained that the Granicus presentation would be moved to the June meeting. At the 
request of McGinnis, Shepard explained some benefits of the software and outsourcing STR 
management. Cheek and McNeilly commented on the benefits of compliance monitoring. 
Franken commented that it would be beneficial to obtain occupancy data. Shepard explained 
that the full platform would take twelve months to implement, but staff expected that July 



 

Rockaway Beach City Council   Page 2 of 5 
Workshop Minutes – May 8, 2024 
 

renewals could be completed using Granicus online forms. He confirmed that data would be 
reported to the Planning Department, and estimated the annual platform cost at $25,000-
30,000. 
 
 

b. Review of Updated Employee Handbook  
Start time: 04:39:37 PM (00:08:42) 
 
Shepard explained that the auditors had recommended a cap on vacation accrual payout, 
which prompted an update to the Employee Handbook. Shepard referred the Council to the 
Staff Report providing an overview of the Handbook updates, and answered clarifying 
questions for the Council. At the request of McGinnis, Shepard explained a typical employee 
orientation process.  
 
 

c. Tillamook County Multi-Jurisdictional Natural Hazards Mitigation Plan  
Staff Report: 04:47:25 PM (00:16:31) 
 
Shepard explained that Tillamook County Multi-Jurisdictional Natural Hazards Mitigation 
Plan discusses the potential natural hazards within the County and various means to mitigate 
them. He explained that the plan is updated every five years and that the City needed to be a 
signatory on the updated plan in order to be eligible for hazard mitigation project grant 
funding.  

 
 

d. Façade Improvement Grant – What projects are eligible? 
Start time: 05:11:42 PM (00:40:48) 
 
Shepard provided background, noting that the recent requests for Community Grant funding 
outweighed the available funds. Shepard explained that the Façade Grant criteria didn’t make 

it a great match for non-profits, and the Budget Committee recently increased funds for the 
Community Grant, which could fund non-profit requests. Shepard shared a slide showing the 
state criteria for using the Façade Grant funds for tourism-related facilities. Hayes commented 
that funds remained for the Façade Improvement Grant and that twice in two other meetings 
the Council had talked about opening it back up to the businesses that could apply, and there 
was a consensus three times. Shepard stated that the Façade Grant could be opened back up. 
McGinnis and McNeilly agreed that the Façade Grant could be opened to businesses only. 
Franken commented that she thought the argument was that the Façade Grant funds be used 
for the Community Grant. Hayes argued that the Chamber is a visitor’s center, half the people 
at corned beef at the Lion’s Club are visitors, and the Hope Chest could never survive if it was 
just people who lived in Rockaway that visited. McNeilly stated that the Lion’s Club’s 

substantial purpose was not for supporting tourism, and that was the law. McNeilly said it was 
a community organization to support the community, and in his opinion they did not qualify. 
Hayes disagreed. McNeilly expressed support for funding the Lion’s Club with the 

Community Grant.  McGinnis agreed, stating that was why the Community Grant was 
increased. McGinnis explained that she initially supported opening the Façade Grant to non-
profits, but had since learned more about the state statutes restricting the use of funds to 
tourist-related facilities, and did not want to jeopardize the City’s future use of the funds. 

avca:88a96d9f-b1c5-41e4-aeb2-2db5bd6bdc46@00:08:42
avca:88a96d9f-b1c5-41e4-aeb2-2db5bd6bdc46@00:16:31
avca:88a96d9f-b1c5-41e4-aeb2-2db5bd6bdc46@00:40:48


 

Rockaway Beach City Council   Page 3 of 5 
Workshop Minutes – May 8, 2024 
 

McGinnis noted that there were other options for non-profits. Shepard commented that there 
was plenty of money to go around to all of the businesses and non-profits, and the Community 
Grant was well funded. He added that the benefit of the Community Grant was that it was not 
a reimbursement grant, and funds were received up front. Hayes suggested that the only 
business that met the state criteria highlighted on the slide was the Chamber. McNeilly 
disagreed, and noted that item (b) in the definition included “has a substantial purpose of 

supporting tourism or accommodating tourist activities.” McNeilly stated that all of the 

businesses in the commercial district had a substantial purpose of supporting tourism. 
McGinnis noted that in the 501(c)(6) mandate for chambers, tourism-related facilities are not 
considered, and chambers are supposed to work for the benefit of their paid membership. 
McGinnis explained she wanted to ensure that the Chamber didn’t get short-shifted. Hayes 
explained that the Chamber also has a charitable arm and has both statuses. Considering that, 
McGinnis recommended the Community Grant for the Chamber and advocated for letting the 
businesses benefit from the Façade Grant, reiterating the Community Grant was increased to 
accommodate the others.  
 
There was discussion regarding grant funds in the next fiscal year’s proposed budget. It was 
noted that the Planning Commission was working on updates to the Community Grant 
criteria. Shepard noted the fastest it could be adopted was July. McNeilly suggested the 
Planning Commission review the Façade Improvement Grant next. McGinnis expressed 
concerns about making changes to criteria now with respect to non-profits. There was 
discussion regarding clarifying criteria and processes for all three grants (Façade 
Improvement, Off-Season Marketing and Community). McGinnis suggested that each 
applicant do a short presentation. Hayes suggested an exception and appeal process.  
After further discussion, McNeilly summarized his understanding that there was consensus to 
have the Planning Commission make recommendations for the Community Grant and 
approve it at the July meeting, and not reopen the Façade Grant now, but ask the Planning 
Commission to look at that second. Hayes said she thought we were reopening the Façade 
Grant now and there were funds remaining. McNeilly said the remaining funds would roll 
over to next fiscal year. Hayes disagreed. She said we agreed three times and she had been 
trying to get the money to cycle back for four years. McNeilly expressed concern about 
opening a program that they’d decided had flaws and needed to be reworked. McNeilly stated 
he felt strongly that the Planning Commission do their thing and then bring it back to the City 
Council to approve it.  Cheek wondered if those such as the Hope Chest could be given a 
boost since they had already applied. It was noted that the Hope Chest would qualify under 
the Community Grant rather than the Façade Grant. Franken noted that the Hope Chest had 
already been awarded some funds. Hayes stated that the Chamber had already started working 
on a Façade Grant application because they thought it would reopen, and they needed new 
gutters. Hayes said she didn’t understand why they all kept making a decision and then had to 
hash it out again. Franken stated that it was discussed, but nothing was finalized. McGinnis 
stated the Council can’t vote in workshops.  McGinnis expressed concern with the time frame, 
since the fiscal year ends in June. She noted that by rolling the funds over into the next fiscal 
year, businesses would only need to wait a few more months. She expressed further concern 
about changing the process mid-stream. She said we would have a cleaner process from the 
Planning Commission. Hayes said other businesses hadn’t asked for the money and advocated 

again for opening the grant to non-profits so that all of the facades in town could be fixed up. 
McNeilly reiterated the need for clear criteria that could be utilized to swiftly grant awards in 



 

Rockaway Beach City Council   Page 4 of 5 
Workshop Minutes – May 8, 2024 
 

the next fiscal year. McGinnis said she wanted a scoring guide. Martine commented on the 
importance of continuing to require the reporting of receipts. Cheek concurred with Martine. 

 
 

e. Jetty Creek LOI and NDA Next Steps  
Start time: 04:49:16 PM (00:18:22) 
 
Shepard referred the Council to the memo in their packet from Daniel Wear of Sustainable 
Northwest and provided an overview of the next steps towards the management of Jetty Creek 
Watershed identified in the memo. Franken expressed concerns about some of the language in 
the attachment to the memo, “Oregon Forest Legacy Program Application Instructions”, 
regarding commodity resources and requested that the attorney clarify it. Shepard indicated 
that he would get clarification. There was brief discussion regarding the Letter of Intent, and 
Shepard explained that it would come before the Council for consideration at the June 
meeting. Shepard explained, and there was discussion, regarding the process for potential land 
acquisition and appraisals. McNeilly commented on a sense of urgency since Nuveen would 
entertain any offer received. 
 
 

f. Proclamation Draft – High School Senior Recognition Month 
Start time: 05:08:50 PM (00:37:55) 
 
Shepard invited the Council to comment on the draft proclamation and explained that the 
proclamation would be considered for adoption at the June meeting. McNeilly acknowledged 
John Goertzen for suggesting the idea at a Coffee with Mayor and Manager meeting. Hayes 
commented that there were some seniors graduating with double Associate’s degrees. Martine 
commented on the advantages of a smaller school and the importance of accolades. McGinnis 
commented that it was important to honor every student who completed their 13 years of 
education, and a desire to continue a partnership with the school district. 
 
 
 

4. ADJOURNMENT  
Start time: 05:35:47 PM (01:04:53) 
 
Martine made a motion, seconded by Cheek, to adjourn the meeting at 5:36 p.m. 
 
The motion carried by the following vote: 

 
Position #2 - Tom Martine: Motion 
Position #5 - Penelope Cheek: 2nd 
Position #3 - Kristine Hayes: Approve 
Position #4 - Alesia Franken: Approve 
Position #1 - Mary McGinnis: Approve 
Position #5 - Penelope Cheek: Approve 
Position #2 - Tom Martine: Approve 
 

 

avca:88a96d9f-b1c5-41e4-aeb2-2db5bd6bdc46@00:18:22
avca:88a96d9f-b1c5-41e4-aeb2-2db5bd6bdc46@00:37:55
avca:88a96d9f-b1c5-41e4-aeb2-2db5bd6bdc46@01:04:53
avca:88a96d9f-b1c5-41e4-aeb2-2db5bd6bdc46@01:05:18
avca:88a96d9f-b1c5-41e4-aeb2-2db5bd6bdc46@01:05:18
avca:88a96d9f-b1c5-41e4-aeb2-2db5bd6bdc46@01:05:18
avca:88a96d9f-b1c5-41e4-aeb2-2db5bd6bdc46@01:05:18
avca:88a96d9f-b1c5-41e4-aeb2-2db5bd6bdc46@01:05:18
avca:88a96d9f-b1c5-41e4-aeb2-2db5bd6bdc46@01:05:18
avca:88a96d9f-b1c5-41e4-aeb2-2db5bd6bdc46@01:05:18
avca:88a96d9f-b1c5-41e4-aeb2-2db5bd6bdc46@01:05:18


 

Rockaway Beach City Council   Page 5 of 5 
Workshop Minutes – May 8, 2024 
 

      
 MINUTES APPROVED THE 
 12TH DAY OF JUNE 2024 

 
 

               ______________________________ 
Charles McNeilly, Mayor  

ATTEST  
 
 
___________________________ 
Melissa Thompson, City Recorder  
 



 

Ordinance No. 2024-03  Page 1 of 2 

 
CITY OF ROCKAWAY BEACH, OREGON 

ORDINANCE NO. 2024-03 
 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE ROCKAWAY BEACH CODE OF ORDINANCES, 
CHAPTER 91, SECTION 91.01 FEEDING AND KEEPING OF WILD ANIMALS 

 
RECITALS: 
 

1. Rockaway Beach Code, Section 91.01 must be amended to update references to Oregon 
Revised Statutes (ORS); and 
 

2. ORS 496.004(8) provides that “Fur-bearing mammal” means beaver, bobcat, fisher, 

marten, mink, muskrat, otter, raccoon, red fox and gray fox; and 
 

3. ORS 496.004(9) provides that “Game mammal” means antelope, black bear, cougar, 

deer, elk, moose, mountain goat, mountain sheep, silver gray squirrel and gray wolf as a 
special status mammal defined by commission rule; and 
 

4. ORS 609.205 defines “exotic animal”. 
 
Now, therefore, the City of Rockaway Beach ordains as follows: 
 
Section 1.  The City of Rockaway Beach Code of Ordinances, Section 91.01 is hereby amended 
to read as follows, as presented in attached Exhibit A (underline/strikeout version) and Exhibit B 
(clean version): 
 

§ 91.01 FEEDING AND KEEPING OF WILD ANIMALS. 

(A) No person shall intentionally feed or keep fur-bearing mammals as defined in ORS 
496.004, which includes beaver, bobcat, fisher, marten, mink, muskrat, otter, raccoon, 
red fox and gray fox, on either public or private property. 

(B) No person shall intentionally feed or keep game mammals as defined in ORS 496.004, 
which includes antelope, black bear, cougar, deer, elk, moose, mountain goat, 
mountain sheep, silver gray squirrel and gray wolf, on either public or private property. 

(C) No person shall intentionally feed or keep exotic animals as defined in ORS 609.205. 

(D) Any person violating any provision of this section shall be subject to penalties 
prescribed in § 10.99. 

 
Section 2.  Severability Clause.  A determination of invalidity or unconstitutionality by a court 
of competent jurisdiction of any clause, sentence, paragraph, section or part of this ordinance 
shall not affect the validity of the remaining parts to this ordinance.  
 
Section 3.  Effective Date. This ordinance shall become effective 30 days after its adoption by 
the City Council and approval by the Mayor. 



 

Ordinance No. 2024-03  Page 2 of 2 

 
1st reading by the Rockaway Beach City Council      . 
2nd reading by the Rockaway Beach City Council      . 
 
Adopted and Approved by the Rockaway Beach City Council    . 
 
 
         
Charles McNeilly, Mayor 
 
 
City Council   Aye/Nay 
Mary McGinnis        / 
Tom Martine         / 
Kristine Hayes         / 
Alesia Franken        / 
Penny Cheek         / 
 
 
 
Attest: 
 
      
Melissa Thompson, City Recorder 



 

WILD LIFE 

 

§ 91.01 FEEDING AND KEEPING OF WILD ANIMALS. 

(A)    No person shall intentionally feed or keep fur-bearing mammalswildlife as defined in 
O.R.S. 496.004 and O.R.S. 609.205, which includes beaver, bobcat, fisher, marten, mink, 
muskrat, otter, raccoon, red fox and gray fox, on either public or private property. 

(B) No person shall intentionally feed or keep game mammals as defined in ORS 496.004, 
which includes antelope, black bear, cougar, deer, elk, moose, mountain goat, 
mountain sheep, silver gray squirrel and gray wolf, on either public or private 
property. 

(C) No person shall intentionally feed or keep exotic animals as defined in ORS 609.205. 

(D) Any person violating any provision of this section shall be subject to penalties 
prescribed in § 10.99. 

 

(Prior Code, Ord. 2000-359, passed 4-1-2000) Penalty, see § 91.99 

 Ordinance 2024-03 - Exhibit A (underline/strikeout)



 

WILD LIFE 

 

§ 91.01 FEEDING AND KEEPING OF WILD ANIMALS. 

(A) No person shall intentionally feed or keep fur-bearing mammals as defined in ORS 
496.004, which includes beaver, bobcat, fisher, marten, mink, muskrat, otter, raccoon, 
red fox and gray fox, on either public or private property. 

(B) No person shall intentionally feed or keep game mammals as defined in ORS 496.004, 
which includes antelope, black bear, cougar, deer, elk, moose, mountain goat, 
mountain sheep, silver gray squirrel and gray wolf, on either public or private 
property. 

(C) No person shall intentionally feed or keep exotic animals as defined in ORS 609.205. 

(D) Any person violating any provision of this section shall be subject to penalties 
prescribed in § 10.99. 

 

 

 Ordinance 2024-03 - Exhibit A (clean copy)



City of Rockaway Beach, Oregon
276 S. Highway 101, PO Box 5

Rockaway Beach, OR 97136
(503) 374-1752

cityhall@corb.us

APPLICATION FOR THE CITY OF ROCKAWAY BEACH
PLANNING COMMISSION

Name: Sandra Johnson

Mailing Address: City, State, ZIP: Rockaway Beach, OR
97136

Physical Address: City, State, ZIP: Rockaway Beach, OR
97136

Phone Number:

Email Address:

How long have you resided in Rockway Beach? since 2018

Signature: Date: June 28. 2024

In addition to the information provided above, please include:
a cover letter,
resume, and
answer the questions below.

Application Questions:

1. Why would you like to serve on the Planning Commission? See cover letter.

2. Are you willing to commit to attending all Planning Commission meetings, workshops,
trainings, and events? Yes.



Sandra L. Johnson

Rockaway Beach, OR 97136

June 28, 2024

Dear Mayor and Rockaway Beach City Councilors,

I am pleased to submit my application for reappointment to the Rockaway Beach Planning Commission. I
have served on the Planning Commission since my initial appointment in 2021 and have found the
position to be interesting and rewarding. I have enjoyed working with my Co-Commissioners and City
Staff to ensure thatourCity Ordinances andComprehensivePlan areproperty addressed, whileensuring
that the interests of our citizens and developers are fairly heard and considered.

I believe Rockaway Beach is a wonderful community with the potential to be even better. It is currently
experiencing an exciting period of growth and renovation in the context of anengaged citizenry anda
dynamic and hardworking administration. Strong leadership from both an administrative and a planning
perspective is necessary to ensure local development and improvements occur in a well thought out,
organized and fair manner with the concerns of our citeens addressed. As our ComprehensivePlan
states, the Planning Commission is the “permanent citizen’s involvement committee.” As such, I believe
the Planning Commission plays a critical role in ensuring community input and support in the City’s
growth and evolution.

Why I would like to continue serving on the Planning Commission: I would welcome reappointment
to thePlanningCommission so that f cancontinue to -usemy research andanalytical skillsdevetopedin
my career as an attorney to help my community continue to make good planning policies and decisions.
Also,Ibelieve those skirts are useful to the Commission to ensure that our variance, subdivision, and
PUD decision are consistent with our Ordinances and other applicable laws.

As a retiree living full time here, I have the time and commitment to speak with the residents to get a
senseof thedirectionourcommunity wouldliketoseeRockaway Beachtakewithregardtoits futureand
to advocate for policies and decisions consistent with that vision. My monthly attendance at City Council
Workshops and Meetings (or review of video recordings) has enabled me to gain an understanding of the
issues ouradministrationhas prioritized. With this informationIbefieveicancontribute to thePlanning
Commission in a way that helps move the community forward.

I feel fortunate to live in an area where so many of its residents donate their time and skills to ensure that
ournaturalresources areprotected, that everyone feels welcome, thatopportunities forgrowthexist,and
that our public services are well provided for. By serving on the Planning Commission I strive to put my
skills to good use and “do my part.” Thank you for your consideration of my application.

Respectfully,

Sandra Johnson



SANDRA L. JOHNSON

Rockaway Beach, OR 97136

Summary
As an attorney, I have developed strong analytical and research skiUs. Ihave the ability to
quickly identify important issues and various paths to solution. My ability to read, write, and
understand complex ordinances, codes andgoverning documents enableme tobeaproductive
member of a Board or Commission.

Ihave served on several nonprofit governingboards throughoutmycareer, including serviceon
executive committees, which provided me with experience in participating in and conducting
productive, respectful meetings.

Skills
• Ability to comprehend complex legal authorities

ExperiencedinBoardparticipation
• Strong comprehension, writing and analytical skills
• Diplomatic and respectful of diverse ideas

Experience
Johnson Law Offices / Redding, CA
Owner andManagingPartner
2000-2018
As a managing attorney in addition to personnel, fiscal and workflow oversight,Ialsomanaged
a heavy caseload. This required that I develop good relations with clients and court personnel,
stay abreast of current legislation, and provide sound guidance, legal advice and results.

Moss & Enochian, PC / Redding, CA
Associate Attorney
1988-2000
As an attorney with this well regarded, mid-size law firm, I had the opportunity to work with and
learn from experienced practitioners in the context of litigation andappellate practice involving
individuals, businesses, insurers, and municipalities.

Education
University ofDubuque /Dubuque, Iowa
Master of Sciences 1980

GonzagaUniversity SchoolofLaw f Spokane, WA
Juris Doctorate 1987



City of Rockaway Beach, Oregon

276 S. Highway 101, PO Box 5
Rockaway Beach, OR 97136

(503) 374-1752
cityhall@corb.us

APPLICATION FOR THE CITY OF ROCKAWAY BEACH
PLANNING COMMISSION

Name: Nancy Laga Lanyon

Mailing Address: , Rockaway Beach OR 97136

Physical Address: ., Rockaway Beach OR 97136

Phone Number:

Email Address:

How long have you resided in Rockaway Beach? 5 years (Oct. 2019)

Signature: Date: Nancy Laga Lanyon 6/13/2024

In addition to the information provided above, please include:
☐ a cover letter,
☐ resume, and
☐ answer the questions below.

Application Questions:

1. Why would you like to serve on the Planning Commission? To continue serving our city

2. Are you willing to commit to attending all Planning Commission meetings, workshops,
trainings, and events? Yes



Nancy Laga Lanyon

Rockaway Beach, OR 97136

City of Rockaway Beach Council
Mayor Charles McNeilly (and Councilors)
276 Hwy 101 S / PO Box 5
Rockaway Beach, OR 97136
503 374-1752

June 13, 2024
Re: Letter of Interest Toward Planning Commission (Expiration) Vacancy

Dear Mayor McNeilly (and City Councilors),
Thank you for your consideration of my application to continue service as Position 6 on

our City Planning Commission. I continue to attend city-sponsored public engagement
opportunities, from council meetings and workshops to TCVA and Salmonberry Trail events. The
Rockaway Beach Planning Commission has been and is tasked with a number of critical
decisions for the growth and betterment of our community, and I believe I have been diligent in
my role to make informed, fair decisions.

My first RBPC meeting July of 2023 included the initial variance application for a Lake
Lytle (85 lots on 18.9 acres) subdivision, hearing Salmonberry Trail concerns, our upcoming
involvement for compliance with new Oregon Dept. of Land Conservation and Development
(LCD) rules from housing to zoning, Anchor St. playground near-end decisions discussion,
upcoming review of state planning goals, transportation and parking growth … I can tell you I
followed-through educating myself about these issues and had already prepared for playground
aspects I thought important - two items included consideration of a boardwalk over the wetland
and to have no dark equipment colors (heat retention from the sun isn’t safe).

In reviewing my meeting notes since then, I substantially research on my own (e.g. Hood
River’s financial set-aside from STR+ fees toward affordable/worker housing development),
potential city amenities like bike repair stations and CORB website pothole reporting, extensive
wetland, forest and beach research. My suggestions range from dating document pages (to
establish timelines of amendments) to mandating periodic review dates for adopted ordinances.
The city master plan being worked on now is of ongoing importance for me.

I try to be a good citizen steward who supports and strengthens various needs common
to our community as a whole: informed city planning, clean drinking water, youth needs, and
pursuit of affordable housing and local services’ prioritizing “us locals” and our valued visitors as
well. My notes reflect citizens’ concerns I’ve randomly spoken with or who have approached me
on a number of topics; I’ve shared them with the city outright and/or in my decision-making.

I’d be honored to continue serving Rockaway Beach as a Planning Commissioner.
Sincerely,
Nancy Laga Lanyon



Nancy Laga Lanyon
Rockaway Beach, OR 97136

Objective: Support of the Citizens and City of Rockaway Beach

Experience: Substitute Teacher Pre-Kindergarten - High School
Neah-Kah-Nie School District 56, OR, Fall 2021 - Present
Lake Co. Regional Office of Education, IL Districts 67/115, 2006 - 2019
Full-time in all subjects including AP and Special Needs Teaching Assistant

2020 U.S. Census Bureau Enumerator, North/Central Oregon Coast
Salem Oregon Area Census Office, U.S. Census Bureau

“Supplemental” Jobs: Hardline (stocking/inventory/cashier); Reservations
Target Corp.; Compass Group (nee Levy Restaurant Group Int’l) for Ravinia Festival venues

Senior Analyst, Pricing Implementation; entry Reservations Sales/Service
United Airlines Revenue Management, Chicago, Illinois, 1991 - 2006
- Primary internal/external contact for United Airlines rules, pricing and policy and
systems’ quality control; coordinate global passenger waiver policies including
9/11; archivist of mandated anti-trust documentation
- Create, support and implement resources for United products, policies
and promotions via industry Global Distribution Systems (GDS) and united.com
- Accomplished annual six-digit cost-savings through creating new resources
- Key Areas: Highest internal security status, sole record-keeper of sensitive
governmental compliance information, new systems development consultant

Owner, Great River Graphics; Owner/Publisher/Editor The Gorge Current
Hood River, Oregon, 1984 - 1990
- Created, co-owned advertising/publishing business in Pacific Northwest region
- Created, co-owner, reporter, publisher of regional newsweekly The Gorge
Current, earned Society of Professional Journalists award; circulation 8,500.

Administrative Assistant of Outside Operations
Mt, Hood Meadows Ski Area, Mt. Hood, Oregon, 1981 - 1983
Year-round admin for business, communications, compliance of all outside
operations of largest U.S. day-ski area

Education: University of California at San Diego, B.A. Sociology
Volunteer: North Coast Communities for Watershed Protection (NCCWP)

Active member Tillamook Beekeepers Association, Rockaway Beach Emergency
Preparedness and CERT, SOLVE Rockaway Beach beach cleanups, Former
Board of Directors Head Start OR-WA
City of Rockaway Beach Planning Commission


	1. City Council Meeting Agenda 2024-07-17
	4a. CC DRAFT Minutes 2024-06-12
	4b. CC WS DRAFT Minutes 2024-06-12
	4c. City Council Retreat DRAFT Minutes 2024-06-11 wAttach_opt
	3. Strategic Plan Process Overview
	• Wilson shared a Strategic Plan Game Plan handout and provided an overview of the strategic plan process.
	11:05-11:20 AM Recessed for Morning Break
	5. Visioning Exercise
	12:00-12:45 PM Recessed for Lunch
	7. Idea Mapping Exercise
	2:10-2:25 PM  Recessed for Break
	9. Wrap-up + Reflect
	Rockaway Beach SP Workshop Notes.pdf
	Rockaway Beach Strategic Plan_2024-06-12_19-08-57
	Rockaway Beach Strategic Plan_2024-06-12_19-09-20
	Rockaway Beach Strategic Plan_2024-06-12_19-09-36
	Rockaway Beach Strategic Plan_2024-06-12_19-09-53
	Rockaway Beach Strategic Plan_2024-06-12_19-10-05
	Rockaway Beach Strategic Plan_2024-06-12_19-10-16


	4d. DRAFT June 30 2024 Financial Statement
	5a. CommGrantReport_MealsforSrs_2024-06-24_Redacted
	5b. CommGrantReport_RBVolunteers_2024-06-14_Redacted
	5c. CommGrantReport_TilCoDevDisabAdvCouncil_2024-7-02_Redacted
	SKM_C450i24070913380
	SKM_C450i24070913390
	SKM_C450i24070913391

	6a. Staff Report - FireDept June 2024
	6b. Staff Report - Sheriff June24
	Rockaway INCIDENTS.pdf
	Sheet1


	6c. Staff Report - Public Works 2024-7
	Water Treatment
	Water Distribution
	Wastewater Treatment:
	Wastewater Collections:
	Roads:
	Parks:

	6d. Staff Report - City Manager
	Staff Report RE Budget Resolution 2024 37 Scrivener’s Error
	Budget Resolution 2024-37 Scrivener’s Error Memo to City Manager

	6e. Staff Report - Planning Department
	9a. CC Workshop DRAFT Minutes 2024-05-08 rev
	10a. Ordinance 2024-03 Amending Chapter 91 Animals_with_Exhibits
	10c1. Johnson_Sandra_PC_Application_2024_Redacted
	10c2. Lanyon_PC_Application_2024_Redacted
	Lanyon RBPC App 2024
	Lanyon RB Plan Comm Letter 2024
	Lanyon Resume June 2024


